
1 of 2 

 

EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
September 8, 2016 

 
Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts___Longanecker ___Crooks ___Troutner ___ Brown ___ Crist 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Agenda Approval 
5. Approve City Council Meeting Minutes August 25, 2016 
6. Approve Ordinance No. 1031 Ordinance Amending Chapter XI, Article 1, Section 11-101 Of 

The Code Of The City Of Edgerton, Kansas, Concerning The Uniform Public Offense Code 
7. Approve Ordinance No. 1032 Amending Chapter XIV Of The Edgerton, Kansas Municipal 

Code To Incorporate The 2016 Standard Traffic Ordinance, Subject To Existing Local Traffic 
Provisions In The City Code Which Supplement And/Or Modify Certain Sections Thereof 

 
Regular Agenda 
8. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

9. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
Business Requiring Action 
10. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1033 AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE 

ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2016-B, OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN 
ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST 
ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER 
DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND MAKING 
CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT THERETO 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
11. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 09-08—16A PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS 

OF AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2016-B, OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, 
PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NO. 1033 OF THE ISSUER; MAKING 
CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND 



2 of 2 

 

SECURITY THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND 
ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
12. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A RESOLUTION 

CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A RESOLUTION OF INTENT 
FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, LLC TO ELHC XIV, LLC OR ITS 
SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 

 
13. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1034 APPROVING THE DESCRIPTION AND SURVEY 

OF LANDS NECESSARY FOR ACQUISITION OF EASEMENTS NEEDED FOR 
EXPANSION OF THE CITY’S SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM AND 
ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
14. Report by the City Administrator 

o LKM Annual Conference Voting Delegate 
o LP District Regulations regarding Signs 

 
15. Report by the Mayor 

 
16. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 

 September 13th 7:00 PM – Planning Commission with Joint Work Session Immediately 
Following City Council/Planning Commission 

 September 20th 5:30 – 7:30 PM – Parks Master Plan Open House 
 September 21st Noon – Senior Lunch 
 September 22nd 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 

 
17. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ______ 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 1 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

August 25, 2016 
 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, 

Kansas on August 25, 2016.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Roberts presiding, and 
City Clerk Janeice L. Rawles recording. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Charlie Troutner  present 
Clay Longanecker  present 
Cindy Crooks  present 
Jody Brown  present 
 
Darius Crist  absent 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance:  City Administrator Beth Linn 
    Community Development Director Kenny Cook    
    City Attorney Patrick Reavey 
    Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
    Utility Superintendent Mike Mabrey 
    Accountant Karen Kindle 
    Parks & Recreation Coordinator Tegan Meadors 
                               

2.  WELCOME  
         
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
 CONSENT AGENDA  
4.  The agenda for August 11, 2016 was considered. 
5. City Council meeting Minutes of August 11, 2016 was considered. 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Consent Agenda. 
 
 Motion was approved 4-0. 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
 None 
 
7. DECLARATION 
   
 None 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 2 
8. REQUEST FOR DONATION FROM COPS ‘N BOBBERS FISHING DERBY WAS CONSIDERED 
 
 Deputy Larry Shoop was present to discuss the 20th annual Cop’s and Bobbers Fishing Derby.  The 

Fishing Derby will be held on September 24th, 2016 at the Edgerton City Lake.  Deputy Shoop 
complimented Tegan Meadors on a job well done with last year’s derby.   The City of Edgerton 
donated $750.00 last year and is asking for $1000.00 this year.  Tegan Meadors, Park and Recreation 
Coordinator for the City of Edgerton will be purchasing the prizes this year and storing them until 
the day of the derby.   Deputy Shoop explained that the additional $250.00 will be used for hats or 
shirts for the 20th year. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Troutner, to approve a $1000.00 donation to the Cop’s and 

Bobbers Fishing Derby, with a transfer from community assistance to the park and recreation 
budget for $750.00 and a check to Cop’s  N Bobbers for $250.00. 

 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
9. REQUEST FOR DONATION FROM MIKE AND JOHNNIE’S ANANUAL ADOPT THE CHILDREN CHARITY 

CLAY SHOOT WAS CONSIDERED 
 
 Mike Gardner was here to represent “Mike and Johnnie’s Annual Adopt the Children Charity Clay 

Shoot” and ask for a donation.  Mr. Gardner is not asking for a certain amount and will appreciate 
any amount that the City Council would like to give.  Last year the City of Edgerton was a Towel 
Sponsor and made a donation of $1200.00.  Mr. Gardner explained about the clay shoot and some 
of the other activities that happen that day, such as Breast Cancer supporters will be serving food 
and the dollars collected will go to Breast Cancer awareness. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Longanecker, to donate $1200.00 to “Mike and Johnnie’s Annual 

Adopt the Children Charity Clay Shoot” 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
BUSINESS REQUIRING ACTION 
 
 RESOLUTION NO 08-25-16A 
10. RESOLUTION NO. 08-25-16A AMENDING RESOLUTION NO 07-14-16A OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 

KANSAS, PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF INCREASED COSTS TO IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF THE CITY PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Representatives from Gilmore & Bell and Columbia Capital are present to explain and answer any 

questions about the new Resolution No. 08-25-16A. This resolution is amending a past resolution 
providing for the payment of increased costs to improvements to the sewer system. 

 
 There were no questions or comments from the public or the council. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to approve Resolution No. 08-25-16A. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 3 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO 1029 – G.O.BONDS 
11. ORDINANCE NO 1029 AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2016-B, OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 
INTEREST OF SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS 
AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENENTS WITH RESPECT 
THERETO WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Jeff White, Financial Advisor, Columbia Capital was present to present Ordinance No. 1029 and to 

answer any questions.  Ordinance No. 1029 is to authorize and provide for the issuance of general 
obligation bonds, series 2016-B. 

 
 There were no questions or comments from the public or the council. 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to approve Ordinance No. 2019 authorizing General 

Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO 08-25-16B 
12. RESOLUTION NO. 08-25-16B PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF AND AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2016-B, OF THE 
CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NO 1029 OF THE ISSUER; 
MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY 
THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS CONNECTED 
THEREWITH WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Resolution No. 08-25-16B is to prescribe the form and details of and authorize and direct the sale 

and delivery of general obligation bonds, series 2016B.  This resolution will also specify the terms 
and conditions of the bonds. 

 
 There were no questions or comments from the public or the council. 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Crooks, to approve Resolution No. 08-25-16B. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION NO. 08-25-16C 
13. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING RESOLUTIO NO 08-25-16C CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL 

ASSIGNMENT OF A RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, LLC TO 
COLDPOINT LOGISTICS REAL ESTATE LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST. 

 
 Scott Anderson, SA Legal advisors was present to explain and answer any questions about 

Resolution No 08-25-16C.   This resolution is about Edgerton Land Holding Company number forty, 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 4 
which is to be a warehouse and cold storage.  Edgerton Land Holding Company #40 will be the first 
warehouse on the north side of the rail. 

 
 Public Hearing opened at 7:32 pm. 
 
 No questions or comments from the public or the council. 
 
 Public Hearing closed at 7:33 pm.  
 
 RESOLUTION NO  08-25-16C 
14. RESOLUTION NO. 08-25-16C CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A RESOLUTION OF 

INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, LLC TO COLDPOINT LOGISTICS REAL ESTATE, 
LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Scott Anderson, SA Legal Advisors was present to answer any questions or comments from the 

public or the City Council.  
 There were no question or comments from the public or City Council. 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Resolution No 08-25-16C. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
  
 PUBLIC HEARING 
15. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A RESOLUTION  CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, LLC TO ELHC XIV, LLC OR 
ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST. 

 
 Scott Anderson present to explain about the resolution consenting to the partial assignment of a 

resolution of intent from Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC to ELHD XIV, LLC or its successors in 
interest.   

 The Public Hearing opened at 7:30pm. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to table the public Hearing until the September 8th, 2016 

meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 RESOLUTION NO 08-25-16D 
16. RESOLUTION NO 08-25-16D PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 26-201 SETTING FORTH THE NECESSITY FOR 

CONDEMNATION OF PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF A SURVEY AND LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY TO BE CONDEMNED WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Beth Linn, City Administrator, gave some background information about the new sanitary sewer 

pump station and force main to connect the residential area of Edgerton to Big bull Creek 
Wastewater Treatment Facility. This project will also decommission the existing Edgerton 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  All but one of the easements needed for the project have been 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 5 
acquired, with the remaining property owner being Mid States Materials, which operates the 
Edgerton Quarry. 

 
 There were no questions or comments from the public or the City Council. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Longanecker, to approve Resolution No. 08-25-16D. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 ORDINANCE NO 1030 
17. ORDINANCE NO 1030 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

EDGERTON, KANSAS AND THE STATE OF KANSAS, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE KANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING A LOAN FROM 
THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY LOAN FUND FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A PUBLIC 
WATER SUPPLY PROJECT; ESTABLISHING A DEDICATED SOURCE OF REVENUE FOR REPAYMENT OF 
SUCH LOAN; AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTIN THEREWITH; 
AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE LOAN AGREEMENT WAS 
CONSIDERED. 

 
 In November 2015, Edgerton City Council approved the selection of Neptune for the automated 

meter reading project and authorized staff to submit the project to Kansas Department of Health 
and Environment (KDHE) for approximately $300,000.  The project budget of $300,000 includes 
purchase of all the hardware and software for the advanced metering infrastructure, a portion of 
the utility rate study and administrative support of completing the application.  In February 2016 the 
City Council approved Resolution No. 02-25-16B that allowed the loan application to be prepared 
and executed.  KDHE has notified the City the loan application has been approved.  Ordinance No. 
1030 and the loan agreement are the final actions required by City Council to obtain the loan. The 
Utility Superintendent, Mike Mabrey, for the City of Edgerton reported that 50 meters are in the 
ground and the two large meters for the School District are in the ground.  Mr. Mabrey is going to 
use some of the public works employees to help install, the deadline for the installation is the end of 
October.   

 
 There were no question or comments from the public or City Council. 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Ordinance No. 1030. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 
18. REPORT BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

 Two city staff members have moved to 305 E. Nelson. 
 

 The City of Edgerton purchased a new street sweeper, everyone is invited to stop by and 
 take a look. 

 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 6 
 Preparations are being made to chip and seal in the month of September, weather 

 permitting. 
 

 At the intersection of 199th street and Homestead Lane we need to change the 
 placement of the signs for the trucks.  City Council agreed that we need to move that 
 sign to northbound Homestead. 

 
 Community Development Director, Kenny Cook gave an update on the West Eighth 

 Street, Sidewalk Project.  Of the 25 properties that we need easements from, we only 
 have 7 properties. 

 
 Public Open House for the Park Master Plan Project, Tuesday, September 20th from 

 5:30-7:30pm at the Community Hall. 
 

 There is a hiring fare at Learning and Career Center on September 14th. 
 

19. REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
 
 For public information “Amazon” went live on the 24th of August 2016. 
 
20. FUTURE MEETING/EVENT REMINDERS 

 September 5th Labor Day – City Offices Closed 
 Week of September 5th – Trash Collection on Thursday 
 September 8th 7:00 pm – City Council Meeting 
 September 13th 7:00 pm – Planning Meeting/followed by Joint Work Session with City 

Council and Planning Commission 
 September 21st Noon – Senior Lunch 
 September 22nd 7:00 pm – City Council Meeting 

 
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION – ATTORNEY/CLIENT 
21. RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH 

AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY 
ATTORNEY AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to recess into executive session to include City Attorney 

and City Administrator. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 Meeting recessed at 8:16 pm for five minutes. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to reconvene into regular session. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
August 25, 2016 

Page 7 
 Meeting reconvened at 8:22 pm with no action taken. 
 
 Attorney Patrick Reavey addressed the Mayor and City Council about the Joint Sewer Project with 

The City of Gardner.  Edgerton has received partial payment from The City of Gardner however 
they have disagreed with the amount.  Mayor stated that The City of Edgerton has been waiting for 
payment for over three years. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Longanecker, as of November 1st, 2016, if the issue has not been 

resolved and payment in full has not been made to City of Edgerton, The City of Edgerton should 
file papers on November 2nd, 2016 for a lawsuit. 

 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION – ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY 
22. RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(6) FOR PRELIMINARY 

DISCUSSION RELATED TO ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to recess into executive session to include City Attorney, 

City Administrator and Community Development Director. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 Regular meeting recessed at 8:29 for fifteen minutes. 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to reconvene into regular session. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 8:45pm with no action taken. 
 
23. ADJOURN 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 9:00p.m. 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Janeice L. Rawles, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Approved by the Governing Body on 

 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Ordinance No. 1031 Amending Chapter XI, Article 1, Section 11-101 Of The 
Code Of The City Of Edgerton, Kansas, Concerning The Uniform Public Offense Code 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item: Annually, the League of Kansas Municipalities prepares and 
publishes the code known as the Uniform Public Offense Code (UPOC) for Kansas Cities. This ordinance 
will adopt the Uniform Public Offense Code Edition 2016, prepared and published in book form by the 
League of Kansas Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas, save and except such articles, sections, parts or portions 
as are omitted, deleted, modified, or changed Section 11-102 of the existing Code of the City of Edgerton. 
 
Please find enclosed with this agenda item an article prepared by the League of Kansas Municipalities 
regarding the changes in the UPOC.  
 
Enclosure:  Draft Ordinance No. 1031 

  August 2016 Article in Kansas Government Journal regarding Changes to 2016 UPOC 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  Edgerton City Code Chapter XI 

 

Recommendation:  Approve Ordinance No. 1031 Amending Chapter XI, Article 1, Section 11-101 Of The 
Code Of The City Of Edgerton, Kansas, Concerning The Uniform Public Offense Code 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator  
Date: September 2, 2016 



ORDINANCE NO. 1031 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER XI, ARTICLE 1, SECTION 11-101 OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, CONCERNING THE UNIFORM PUBLIC 
OFFENSE CODE 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF EDGERTON, KANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1: That Chapter XI, Article 1, Section 11-101 of the Code of the City of 
Edgerton is hereby amended to read as follows:  

 

 
11-101.UNIFORM CODE INCORPORATED.  There is hereby incorporated by reference for 

the purpose of regulating public offenses within the corporate limits of the City of 
Edgerton, Kansas, that certain code known as the “Uniform Public Offense Code,” 
Edition 2016, prepared and published in book form by the League of Kansas 
Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas, save and except such articles, sections, parts or 
portions as are omitted, deleted, modified, or changed by Section 11-102 of the 
existing Code of the City of Edgerton. No fewer than one copy of said Uniform Public 
Offense Code “Official Copy as Adopted by Ordinance No. 1031” with all sections or 
portions thereof intended to be omitted or changed clearly marked to show any such 
omission or change and to which shall be attached a copy of this ordinance, and filed 
with the City Clerk to be open for inspection and available to the public at all 
reasonable hours. The Sheriff’s Department of Johnson County, Kansas, the 
municipal judge and all administrative departments of the City charged with 
enforcement of the Ordinance shall be supplied, at the cost to the city, such number of 
official copies of such Uniform Public Offense Code similarly marked, as may be 
deemed expedient.  

 
 SECTION 2: Repeal. Former Chapter XI, Article 1, Section 11-101 of the Edgerton 
Municipal Code is hereby repealed. 

 
 SECTION 3:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective after its passage, 
approval and publication once in the City’s official paper.  
 
 ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 2nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016. 
 
     
     _______________________________________ 
     Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 



 
__________________________________ 
Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney  





AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
  

Agenda Item:  Consider Ordinance No. 1032 Amending Chapter XIV Of The Edgerton, Kansas Municipal 
Code To Incorporate The 2016 Standard Traffic Ordinance, Subject To Existing Local Traffic Provisions In 
The City Code Which Supplement And/Or Modify Certain Sections Thereof 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item: Annually, the League of Kansas Municipalities prepares and 
publishes the code known as the Standard Traffic Ordinance (STO) for Kansas Cities. This ordinance will 
adopt the Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities Edition 2016 except such articles, sections, parts 
or portions as are omitted, deleted, modified, or changed by Sections 14-102 through 14-105 of the Code 
of the City of Edgerton. Please find enclosed with this agenda item an article prepared by the League of 
Kansas Municipalities regarding the changes in the STO.  
 
Enclosure: Draft Ordinance No. 1032 
  August 2016 Article in Kansas Government Journal regarding Changes to 2016 STO 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  Edgerton City Code Chapter XIV 

 

Recommendation:  Approve Ordinance No. 1032 Amending Chapter XIV Of The Edgerton, Kansas 
Municipal Code To Incorporate The 2016 Standard Traffic Ordinance, Subject To Existing Local Traffic 
Provisions In The City Code Which Supplement And/Or Modify Certain Sections Thereof 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator  
Date: September 2, 2016 



ORDINANCE NO. 1032 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER XIV OF THE EDGERTON, KANSAS MUNICIPAL 
CODE TO INCORPORATE THE 2016 STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE, SUBJECT TO 
EXISTING LOCAL TRAFFIC PROVISIONS IN THE CITY CODE WHICH SUPPLEMENT 
AND/OR MODIFY CERTAIN SECTIONS THEREOF. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF EDGERTON, KANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1: Article 1 of Chapter XIV of the Edgerton, Kansas Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to state the following: 

 

ARTICLE 1.  STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE 
 

14-101.UNIFORM CODE INCORPORATED.  There is hereby incorporated by reference for 
the purpose of regulating traffic within the corporate limits of the City of Edgerton, 
Kansas, that certain code known as the “Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas 
Cities” Edition 2016, prepared and published in book form by the League of Kansas 
Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas, save and except such articles, sections, parts or 
portions as are omitted, deleted, modified, or changed by Sections 14-102 through 14-
105 of the existing Code of the City of Edgerton.  No fewer than one copy of said 
Standard Traffic Ordinance shall be marked or stamped “Official Copy as Adopted by 
Ordinance No. 1032” with all sections or portions thereof intended to be omitted or 
changed clearly marked to show any such omission or change and to which shall be 
attached a copy of this ordinance, and filed with the City Clerk to be open for 
inspection and available to the public at all reasonable hours.  The Sheriff’s 
Department of Johnson County, Kansas, the municipal judge and all administrative 
departments of the City charged with enforcement of the Ordinance shall be supplied, 
at the cost to the city, such number of official copies of such Standard Traffic 
Ordinance similarly marked, as may be deemed expedient.  (Ord. 1000, 2015; Ord. 
978, 2014; Ord. 941, 2013; Ord. 928, 2012; Ord. 907, 2011; Ord. 896, 2010; Ord. 860, 
2009; Ord. 840, 2008; Ord. 830, 2007; Ord. 817, 2006; Ord. 782, 2005; Ord. 768, 
2004; Ord. 750, 2003; Ord. 744, 2002; Ord. 729, 2001; Ord. 715, 2000; Ord. 707, 
1999; Ord. 697, 1998; Ord. 688, 1997; Ord. 684, 1997; Ord. 675, 1996; Ord. 666, 
1995; Ord. 650, 1994; Ord. 634, 1993; Ord. 625, 1992; Ord. 617, 1991; Ord. 604, 
1990; Ord. 593, 1989; Ord. 649, 1994; Ord. 578, 1988; Ord. 742, 1987, Ord. 559, 
1986) 

 
14-102.PENALTY FOR SCHEDULED FINES.  The fine for violation of an ordinance traffic 

infraction or any other traffic offense for which the municipal judge establishes a fine in 
a fine schedule shall not be less than $10 nor more than $500, except for speeding 
which shall not be less than $30 nor more than $500.  A person tried and convicted for 
violation of an ordinance traffic infraction or other traffic offense for which a fine has 
been established in a schedule of fines shall pay a fine fixed by the court not to 
exceed $500, but said fine for subsequent convictions for the same offense may be 
increased in accordance with Section 201 of the Standard Traffic Ordinance. (Ord. 
1032, 2016, Ord. 896, 2010; Ord. 865, 2009) (Former Title – Amendment (Driving 
While License Canceled, Suspended or Revoked; Penalty) repealed: (Ord. 545, 1985) 

 
(Former Title 14-106 – Failure to Comply with Traffic Citation, Ord. 545, 1985) 



 
 SECTION 2: Article 2 of Chapter XIV of the Edgerton, Kansas Municipal Code is 
hereby preserved and any modifications or supplements to the Standard Traffic Ordinance 
stated therein are now applicable to the “Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities” 
Edition 2016.  
 

SECTION 3:  Repeal. Former Article 1 of Chapter XIV of the Edgerton Municipal 
Code is hereby repealed. 

 
 SECTION 4:  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective after its passage, 
approval and publication once in the City’s official paper.  
 
 ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 2nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016. 
 
     
     _______________________________________ 
     Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney  





AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Ordinance No. 1033 Authorizing and Providing For The Issuance Of General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, Of The City Of Edgerton, Kansas; Providing For The Levy And Collection 
Of An Annual Tax For The Purpose Of Paying The Principal Of And Interest On Said Bonds As They 
Become Due; Authorizing Certain Other Documents And Actions In Connection Therewith; And Making 
Certain Covenants With Respect Thereto 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item:  
Staff recommends the City Council authorize the issuance of the City’s $245,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2016-B (the “2016-B Bonds”). The Series 2016-B Bonds are being issued subsequent to 
the City’s previously issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016 (the “Series 2016 Bonds”), to remedy 
a shortfall in Series 2016 Bond proceeds necessary to fund sewerage system improvements and related 
expenses.  
 
Due to a problem with the required publications necessary to issue the Series 2016-B Bonds on the 
timeline originally planned, Ordinance No. 1033 and Resolution No. 09-08-16A repeal and supercede 
the prior Ordinance and Resolution related to this bond issue approved on August 25, 2016. The 
changes from the prior actions are necessary to meet the requirements of Kansas statutes, and delay 
the closing date from September 8 to September 15.   
 
To effect this recommendation, the governing body is asked to take two actions: 

1) Approve Ordinance No. 1033 authorizing the sale of the bonds; and 
2) Approve Resolution No. 09-08-16A specifying the terms and conditions of the bonds. 

[FOLLOWING AGENDA ITEM] 
 
Representatives of bond counsel (Gilmore & Bell) will be in attendance at the September 8 meeting to 
address any questions. 
 
Enclosures: Draft Ordinance No. 1033 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  The project to be financed by the bonds is authorized under Charter 
Ordinance No. 22. 

 

Recommendation:  Approve Ordinance No. 1033 Authorizing and Providing For The Issuance Of General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, Of The City Of Edgerton, Kansas; Providing For The Levy And Collection 
Of An Annual Tax For The Purpose Of Paying The Principal Of And Interest On Said Bonds As They 
Become Due; Authorizing Certain Other Documents And Actions In Connection Therewith; And Making 
Certain Covenants With Respect Thereto 

 

Funding Source: Unlimited general obligation (property tax) pledge of repayment, but intended to be 
repaid from fees charged to the City’s sewer customers.  

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: September 6, 2016 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1033 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2016-B, OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS; PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 

AN ANNUAL TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 

INTEREST ON SAID BONDS AS THEY BECOME DUE; AUTHORIZING 

CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH; AND MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS WITH RESPECT 

THERETO. 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City” or “Issuer”) is a city of the third class, duly 

created, organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to undertake certain other improvements to its sewer system, 

including but not limited to decommissioning the existing Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

establishing a new pump station at the location of the Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Plant, and 

constructing a new lift station and force main to connect the new pump station at the location of the 

Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Plant to the new Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment Facility (the 

“Improvements”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City proposes to issue its general obligation bonds to permanently finance the 

Improvements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City previously issued and has outstanding the Series 2012A Bonds and is 

authorized by K.S.A. 10-427 et seq. to issue general obligation bonds of the City for the purpose of 

refunding a portion of the February 1, 2017 interest due on the Bonds on that date in the amount of 

$1,000.00 (the “Refunded Interest”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to provide an orderly plan of finance for the City, it has become desirable 

and in the best interest of the City and its inhabitants to refund the Refunded Interest, which cost is allocable 

to the Bonds defined herein; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of the City is authorized by law to issue general obligation bonds 

of the City to pay the costs of the Improvements. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1.   Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined elsewhere 

herein, the following words and terms in this Ordinance shall have the meanings hereinafter set forth.  

Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular number shall include the plural and 

vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms, associations and corporations, including public 

bodies, as well as natural persons. 

 

 “Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, 

inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., Charter Ordinance No. 22 of the Issuer and Article 

12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, all as amended and supplemented from time to 

time. 



 

2 

 

 “Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the City for its general obligation 

bonds. 

 

 “Bond Resolution” means the resolution to be adopted by the governing body of the City 

prescribing the terms and details of the Bonds and making covenants with respect thereto. 

 

 “Bonds” means the City’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, dated September 15, 2016, 

authorized by this Ordinance. 

 

 “City” means the City of Edgerton, Kansas. 

 

 “Clerk” means the duly appointed and acting Clerk of the City or, in the Clerk’s absence, the duly 

appointed Deputy, Assistant or Acting Clerk. 

  

 “Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor of the City or, in the Mayor’s absence, the duly 

appointed and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the City. 

 

 “Ordinance” means this Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. 

 

“Refunded Interest” means a portion of the interest due on the Series 2012A Bonds scheduled to 

be paid on February 1, 2017, as described in the recitals hereof.  

 

 “Series 2012A Bonds” means the Issuer’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A, dated 

September 27, 2012. 

 

 “State” means the State of Kansas. 

 

 Section 2.   Authorization of the Bonds.  There shall be issued and hereby are authorized and 

directed to be issued the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, of the City in the principal amount of 

$245,000, for the purpose of providing funds to:  (a) pay the costs of the Improvements; (b) pay a portion 

of the interest on the Bonds; (c) refund the Refunded Interest; and (d) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.   Security for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be general obligations of the City payable 

as to both principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or 

amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the City. The 

full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due.   

 

 Section 4.   Terms, Details and Conditions of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be dated and bear 

interest, shall mature and be payable at such times, shall be in such forms, shall be subject to redemption 

and payment prior to the maturity thereof, and shall be issued and delivered in the manner prescribed and 

subject to the provisions, covenants and agreements set forth in the Bond Resolution hereafter adopted by 

the governing body of the City. 

 

 Section 5.   Levy and Collection of Annual Tax.  The governing body of the City shall annually 

make provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same 

become due by levying and collecting the necessary taxes upon all of the taxable tangible property within 

the City in the manner provided by law. 

 



 

3 

 The taxes above referred to shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the several years, 

respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as the general ad 

valorem taxes of the City are levied and collected, shall be used solely for the payment of the principal of, 

redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due and the fees and 

expenses of the Paying Agent.  The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be deposited in the Bond and 

Interest Fund. 

 

 If at any time said taxes are not collected in time to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds 

when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or interest out of the general 

funds of the City and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended when said taxes are collected. 

 

 Section 6.   Further Authority.  The Mayor, Clerk and other City officials are hereby further 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and take such actions as they may deem necessary 

or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of the Ordinance, and to make alterations, 

changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein 

approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action 

shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability. 

 

 Section 7.   Governing Law.  This Ordinance and the Bonds shall be governed exclusively by and 

construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State. 

 

 Section 8.  Repeal.  Ordinance No. 1029 of the City passed by the governing body on August 25, 

2016, is hereby repealed. This Ordinance shall supersede Ordinance No. 1029. 

 

 Section 9.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 

passage by the governing body of the City, approval by the Mayor and publication of the Ordinance or a 

summary thereof in the official City newspaper. 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

 (Signature Page to Bond Ordinance) 

 PASSED by the governing body of the City on September 8, 2016 and APPROVED AND 

SIGNED by the Mayor. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)              

       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      

Janeice Rawles, Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

      

 Bond Counsel 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 09-08-16A Prescribing The Form And Details Of And Authorizing 
And Directing The Sale And Delivery Of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, Of The City Of 
Edgerton, Kansas, Previously Authorized By Ordinance No. 1033 Of The Issuer; Making Certain 
Covenants And Agreements To Provide For The Payment And Security Thereof; And Authorizing Certain 
Other Documents And Actions Connected Therewith 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item:  
Staff recommends the City Council authorize the issuance of the City’s $245,000 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2016-B (the “2016-B Bonds”). The Series 2016-B Bonds are being issued subsequent to 
the City’s previously issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016 (the “Series 2016 Bonds”), to remedy 
a shortfall in Series 2016 Bond proceeds necessary to fund sewerage system improvements and related 
expenses.  
 
Due to a problem with the required publications necessary to issue the Series 2016-B Bonds on the 
timeline originally planned, Ordinance No. 1033 and Resolution No. 09-08-16A repeal and supercede 
the prior Ordinance and Resolution related to this bond issue approved on August 25, 2016. The 
changes from the prior actions are necessary to meet the requirements of Kansas statutes, and delay 
the closing date from September 8 to September 15.   
 
To effect this recommendation, the governing body is asked to take two actions: 

1) Approve Ordinance No. 1033 authorizing the sale of the bonds; [PREVIOUS AGENDA ITEM] 
2) Approve Resolution No. 09-08-16A specifying the terms and conditions of the bonds.  

 
Representatives of bond counsel (Gilmore & Bell) will be in attendance at the September 8 meeting to 
address any questions. 
 
Enclosures: Draft Resolution No. 09-08-16A 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  The project to be financed by the bonds is authorized under Charter 
Ordinance No. 22. 

 

Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 09-08-16A Prescribing The Form And Details Of And 
Authorizing And Directing The Sale And Delivery Of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, Of The City 
Of Edgerton, Kansas, Previously Authorized By Ordinance No. 1033 Of The Issuer; Making Certain 
Covenants And Agreements To Provide For The Payment And Security Thereof; And Authorizing Certain 
Other Documents And Actions Connected Therewith 

 

Funding Source: Unlimited general obligation (property tax) pledge of repayment, but intended to be 
repaid from fees charged to the City’s sewer customers.  

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: September 6, 2016 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-08-16A 
 

 

OF 

 

 

THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

ADOPTED 

 

 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2016 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

SERIES 2016-B 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS 

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms. .................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE II AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS 

Section 201. Authorization of the Bonds. .......................................................................................... 8 
Section 202. Description of the Bonds. .............................................................................................. 8 
Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. ....................................................... 9 
Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds. ................................................................ 9 
Section 205. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. ................................................. 10 
Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. .......................................................... 10 
Section 207. Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. ............................... 11 
Section 208. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. .............................................................. 11 
Section 209. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. ............................................. 12 
Section 210. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository. ................................................................. 12 
Section 211. Nonpresentment of Bonds. .......................................................................................... 13 
Section 212. Official Statement. ...................................................................................................... 13 
Section 213. Sale of the Bonds – Bond Purchase Agreement. ......................................................... 13 

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 301. Redemption by Issuer. ................................................................................................. 14 
Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. ........................................................................... 14 
Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. ................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE IV SECURITY FOR BONDS 

Section 401. Security for the Bonds. ................................................................................................ 17 
Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax; Transfer to Debt Service Account. ................... 17 

ARTICLE V ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND OTHER MONEYS 

Section 501. Creation of Funds and Accounts. ................................................................................ 17 
Section 502. Deposit of Bond Proceeds. .......................................................................................... 18 
Section 503. Application of Moneys in the Improvement Fund. ..................................................... 18 
Section 504. Substitution of Improvements; Reallocation of Proceeds. .......................................... 18 
Section 505. Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account. ...................................................... 18 
Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys. .......................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE VI DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 601. Remedies. .................................................................................................................... 19 
Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners. ................................................................................. 20 
Section 603. Remedies Cumulative. ................................................................................................ 20 



 

 

ii 

ARTICLE VII DEFEASANCE 

Section 701. Defeasance. ................................................................................................................. 20 

ARTICLE VIII TAX COVENANTS 

Section 801. General Covenants. ..................................................................................................... 21 
Section 802. Survival of Covenants. ................................................................................................ 21 

ARTICLE IX CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

Section 901. Disclosure Requirements. ........................................................................................... 21 
Section 902. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. .................................. 22 

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 1001. Annual Audit. .............................................................................................................. 22 
Section 1002. Amendments. .............................................................................................................. 22 
Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners. ................................................ 23 
Section 1004. Notices. ....................................................................................................................... 24 
Section 1005. Electronic Transactions. .............................................................................................. 24 
Section 1006. Further Authority. ....................................................................................................... 24 
Section 1007. Severability. ................................................................................................................ 24 
Section 1008. Governing Law. .......................................................................................................... 24 
Section 1009. Repeal.......................................................................................................................... 24 
Section 1010. Effective Date. ............................................................................................................ 24 

 

EXHIBIT A – FORM OF BONDS ....................................................................................................... A-1 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-08-16A 

 

A RESOLUTION PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF AND 

AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2016-B, OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 

KANSAS, PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE NO. 1033 OF THE 

ISSUER; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE 

FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY THEREOF; AND AUTHORIZING 

CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS CONNECTED THEREWITH. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Issuer has passed the Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Ordinance authorized the governing body of the Issuer to adopt a resolution 

prescribing certain details and conditions and to make certain covenants with respect to the issuance of the 

Bonds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the governing body of the Issuer hereby finds and determines that it is necessary for 

the Issuer to authorize the issuance and delivery of the Bonds in the principal amount of $245,000 to pay a 

portion of the costs of the Improvements and refund the Refunded Interest. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

ARTICLE I 

 

DEFINITIONS 
 

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms.  In addition to words and terms defined 

elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Bond Resolution shall have the 

meanings hereinafter set forth.  Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the 

singular number shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include 

firms, associations and corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons. 

 

“Act” means the Constitution and statutes of the State including K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, 

inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., Charter Ordinance No. 22 of the Issuer and Article 

12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, all as amended and supplemented from time to 

time. 

 

 “Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiples thereof. 

 

 “Beneficial Owner” of the Bonds includes any Owner of the Bonds and any other Person who, 

directly or indirectly has the investment power with respect to such Bonds. 

 

 “Bond and Interest Fund” means the Bond and Interest Fund of the Issuer for its general 

obligation bonds. 

 



 

2 

 “Bond Counsel” means the firm of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or firm of attorneys 

whose expertise in matters relating to the issuance of obligations by states and their political subdivisions 

is nationally recognized and acceptable to the Issuer. 

 

 “Bond Payment Date” means any date on which principal of or interest on any Bond is payable. 

 

 “Bond Purchase Agreement” means the Bond Purchase Agreement dated as of August 25, 2016, 

as supplemented, between the Issuer and the Purchaser. 

 

 “Bond Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the 

office of the Bond Registrar. 

 

 “Bond Registrar” means the State Treasurer, and any successors and assigns. 

 

 “Bond Resolution” means this resolution relating to the Bonds. 

 

 “Bonds” means the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, authorized and issued by the Issuer 

pursuant to the Ordinance and this Bond Resolution. 

 

 “Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or any day designated as a holiday by 

the Congress of the United States or by the Legislature of the State and on which the Paying Agent is 

scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its operations. 

 

 “Cede & Co.” means Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC and any successor nominee of DTC. 

 

 “City” means the City of Edgerton, Kansas. 

 

 “Clerk” means the duly appointed and/or elected Clerk or, in the Clerk’s absence, the duly 

appointed Deputy Clerk or Acting Clerk of the Issuer. 

 

 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations 

promulgated thereunder by the United States Department of the Treasury. 

 

 “Costs of Issuance” means all costs of issuing the Bonds, including but not limited to all 

publication, printing, signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial 

advisory fees, all legal fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in 

connection with compliance with the Code, all expenses incurred in connection with receiving ratings on 

the Bonds, and any premiums or expenses incurred in obtaining municipal bond insurance on the Bonds. 

 

 “Dated Date” means September 15, 2016. 

 

 “Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account for General Obligation Bonds, Series 

2016-B created within the Bond and Interest Fund pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 

 

 “Debt Service Requirements” means the aggregate principal payments (whether at maturity or 

pursuant to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements) and interest payments on the 

Bonds for the period of time for which calculated; provided, however, that for purposes of calculating such 

amount, principal and interest shall be excluded from the determination of Debt Service Requirements to 

the extent that such principal or interest is payable from amounts deposited in trust, escrowed or otherwise 

set aside for the payment thereof with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company located 

in the State and having full trust powers. 



 

3 

 

 “Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Bond which is payable but not paid on any Interest 

Payment Date. 

 

 “Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations: 

 

 (a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in advance of 

their maturity dates; or 

 

 (b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which is 

excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following conditions: 

 

 (1) the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) the trustee 

for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and 

redemption and the issuer of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem such obligations other 

than as set forth in such instructions; 

 

 (2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government Obligations that 

may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest payments on such obligations; 

 

 (3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States Government 

Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the 

obligations; 

 

 (4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security for the 

obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably in trust; 

 

 (5) such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to satisfy 

any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent; and 

 

(6) such obligations are rated in a rating category by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s 

that is no lower than the rating category then assigned by that Rating Agency to United States 

Government Obligations. 

 

 “Derivative” means any investment instrument whose market price is derived from the fluctuating 

value of an underlying asset, index, currency, futures contract, including futures, options and collateralized 

mortgage obligations. 

 

 “Disclosure Undertaking” means the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking dated as of the Issue 

Date. 

 

 “DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, a limited-purpose trust company organized under the 

laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, including any successor securities depository 

duly appointed. 

 

 “DTC Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representation from the Issuer and the 

Paying Agent to DTC which provides for a book-entry system, or any agreement between the Issuer and 

Paying Agent and a successor securities depository duly appointed. 

 

 “Event of Default” means each of the following occurrences or events: 

 



 

4 

 (a) Payment of the principal and of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the Bonds shall 

not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by proceedings for 

redemption or otherwise; 

 

 (b) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made when the 

same shall become due; or 

 

 (c) The Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, 

conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Bond Resolution (other than the 

covenants relating to continuing disclosure requirements contained herein and in the Disclosure 

Undertaking) on the part of the Issuer to be performed, and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days 

after written notice specifying such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the 

Issuer by the Owner of any of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

 

 “Federal Tax Certificate” means the Issuer’s Federal Tax Certificate dated as of the Issue Date, 

as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance with the provisions thereof. 

 

 “Financeable Costs” means the amount of expenditure for an Improvement which has been duly 

authorized by action of the governing body of the Issuer to be financed by general obligation bonds, less:  

(a) the amount of any temporary notes or general obligation bonds of the Issuer which are currently 

Outstanding and available to pay such Financeable Costs; and (b) any amount of Financeable Costs which 

has been previously paid by the Issuer or by any eligible source of funds unless such amounts are entitled 

to be reimbursed to the Issuer under State or federal law. 

 

 “Fiscal Year” means the twelve month period ending on December 31. 

 

 “Funds and Accounts” means funds and accounts created pursuant to or referred to in Section 501 

hereof. 

 

 “Improvement Fund” means the Improvement Fund for General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-

B created pursuant to Section 501 hereof. 

 

 “Improvements” means the improvements referred to in the preamble to the Ordinance. 

 

 “Independent Accountant” means an independent certified public accountant or firm of 

independent certified public accountants at the time employed by the Issuer for the purpose of carrying out 

the duties imposed on the Independent Accountant by this Bond Resolution. 

 

 “Interest Payment Date(s)” means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Bond 

which shall be February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2017. 

 

 “Issue Date” means the date when the Issuer delivers the Bonds to the Purchaser in exchange for 

the Purchase Price. 

 

 “Issuer” means the City of Edgerton, Kansas and any successors or assigns. 

 

 “Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond means the date on which the principal of such 

Bond becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or 

call for redemption or otherwise. 

 



 

5 

 “Mayor” means the duly elected and acting Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the duly appointed 

and/or elected Vice Mayor or Acting Mayor of the Issuer. 

 

 “Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of Delaware, and its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or 

liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’s” shall be deemed 

to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer. 

 

 “Notice Address” means with respect to the following entities: 

 

 (a) To the Issuer at: 

    

   City of Edgerton, Kansas 

   404 E. Nelson St.  

PO Box 225 

   Edgerton, Kansas 66021 

   Fax:  (913) 893-6232 

 

 (b) To the Paying Agent at: 

 

   State Treasurer of the State of Kansas 

   Landon Office Building 

   900 Southwest Jackson, Suite 201 

   Topeka, Kansas  66612-1235 

   Fax:  (785) 296-6976 

    

 (c) To the Purchaser: 

    

   Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 

777 East Wisconsin Avenue 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202 

    

(d) To the Rating Agency: 

 

   Standard & Poor’s 

   55 Water Street 

   New York, New York 100414 

    

or such other address as is furnished in writing to the other parties referenced herein. 

 

 “Notice Representative” means: 

 

 (a) With respect to the Issuer, the Clerk. 

 

 (b) With respect to the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent, the Director of Bond Services. 

 

 (c) With respect to any Purchaser, the manager of its Municipal Bond Department. 

 

 (d) With respect to any Rating Agency, any Vice President thereof. 

 

 “Official Statement” means Issuer’s Official Statement relating to the Bonds. 



 

6 

 

 “Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 1033 of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, as 

amended from time to time. 

 

 “Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of a particular date of 

determination, all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered, except the following Bonds: 

 

 (a) Bonds theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for 

cancellation; 

 

 (b) Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Article VII hereof; and 

 

 (c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and 

delivered hereunder. 

 

 “Owner” when used with respect to any Bond means the Person in whose name such Bond is 

registered on the Bond Register.  Whenever consent of the Owners is required pursuant to the terms of this 

Bond Resolution, and the Owner of the Bonds, as set forth on the Bond Register, is Cede & Co., the term 

Owner shall be deemed to be the Beneficial Owner of the Bonds. 

 

 “Participants” means those financial institutions for whom the Securities Depository effects book-

entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Securities Depository, as such listing of 

Participants exists at the time of such reference. 

 

 “Paying Agent” means the State Treasurer, and any successors and assigns. 

 

 “Permitted Investments” shall mean the investments hereinafter described, provided, however, 

no moneys or funds shall be invested in a Derivative:  (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and 

amendments thereto; (b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and 

amendments thereto; (c) direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof; (d) the 

Issuer’s temporary notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing 

time deposits in commercial banks or trust companies located in the county or counties in which the Issuer 

is located which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by securities 

described in (c); (f) obligations of the federal national mortgage association, federal home loan banks, 

federal home loan mortgage corporation or government national mortgage association; (g) repurchase 

agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); (h) investment agreements or other obligations of a financial 

institution the obligations of which at the time of investment are rated in either of the three highest rating 

categories by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s; (i) investments and shares or units of a money market fund 

or trust, the portfolio of which is comprised entirely of securities described in (c) or (f); (j) receipts 

evidencing ownership interests in securities or portions thereof described in (c) or (f); (k) municipal bonds 

or other obligations issued by any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which are general 

obligations of the municipality issuing the same; or (l) bonds of any municipality of the State as defined in 

K.S.A. 10-1101 which have been refunded in advance of their maturity and are fully secured as to payment 

of principal and interest thereon by deposit in trust, under escrow agreement with a bank, of securities 

described in (c) or (f), all as may be further restricted or modified by applicable state law. 

 

 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, joint-

stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision 

thereof or other public body. 

 

 “Purchase Price” means the amount set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement.  



 

7 

 

 “Purchaser” means Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated, the original purchaser of the Bonds, and 

any successor and assigns. 

 

 “Rating Agency” means any company, agency or entity that provides, pursuant to request of the 

Issuer, financial ratings for the Bonds. 

 

 “Record Dates” for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day 

(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date. 

 

 “Redemption Date” means, when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed, the date fixed 

for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Bond Resolution. 

 

 “Redemption Price” means, when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed, the price at 

which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Bond Resolution, including the applicable 

redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before 

the Redemption Date. 

 

“Refunded Interest” means a portion of the interest due on the Series 2012A Bonds scheduled to 

be paid on February 1, 2017, as described in the recitals of the Ordinance.  

 

 “Replacement Bonds” means Bonds issued to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds in accordance 

with Article II hereof. 

 

 “SEC Rule” means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

 

 “Securities Depository” means, initially, DTC, and its successors and assigns. 

 

 “Series 2012A Bonds” means the Issuer’s General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A, dated 

September 27, 2012. 

 

“Series 2012A Paying Agent” means the paying agent for the Series 2012A Bonds, and any 

successor or successors at the time acting as paying agent of the Series 2012A Bonds. 

 

 “Special Record Date” means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Article II hereof for 

the payment of Defaulted Interest. 

 

 “Standard & Poor’s” or “S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., a 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, 

and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities 

rating agency, Standard & Poor’s shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating 

agency designated by the Issuer. 

 

 “State” means the state of Kansas. 

 

 “State Treasurer” means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer’s absence, the duly 

appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State. 

 



 

8 

 “Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond or any installment of interest thereon 

means the date specified in such Bond and this Bond Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal of 

such Bond or such installment of interest is due and payable. 

 

 “Substitute Improvements” means the substitute or additional improvements of the Issuer 

described in Article V hereof. 

 

 “Term Bonds” means the Bonds scheduled to mature in the year 2048. 

 

 “Treasurer” means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer of the Issuer or, in the Treasurer’s 

absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the Issuer. 

 

 “United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, 

treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest 

on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United States of 

America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal payment on 

obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of obligations of the 

Resolution Funding Corporation), or securities which represent an undivided interest in such obligations, 

which obligations are rated in the highest rating category by a nationally recognized rating service and such 

obligations are held in a custodial account for the benefit of the Issuer. 

  

 

ARTICLE II 

 

AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS 
 

Section 201.  Authorization of the Bonds.  The Bonds have been heretofore authorized and 

directed to be issued pursuant to the Ordinance in the principal amount of $245,000 for the purpose 

of providing funds to:  (a) pay a portion of the costs of the Improvements; (b) pay a portion of the 

interest on the Bonds; (c) refund the Refunded Interest; and (d) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

 

Section 202. Description of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall consist of fully registered bonds in an 

Authorized Denomination, and shall be numbered in such manner as the Bond Registrar shall 

determine.  All of the Bonds shall be dated as of the Dated Date, shall become due in the amounts, 

on the Stated Maturities, subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturities as 

provided in Article III hereof, and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows: 

 

TERM BONDS 
 

Stated Maturity 

August 1 

Principal 

Amount 

Annual Rate 

of Interest 

2048 $245,000 3.000% 

 

 The Bonds shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year 

of twelve 30-day months) from the later of the Dated Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to 

which interest has been paid on the Interest Payment Dates in the manner set forth in Section 204 hereof. 

 

 Each of the Bonds, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be 

printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be 

substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT A or as may be required by the Attorney General 



 

9 

pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), in 

accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq. 

 

Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar.  The State Treasurer is hereby 

designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds and Bond 

Registrar with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds.  The Mayor of the Issuer 

is hereby authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of the Issuer an agreement with the Bond 

Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds. 

 

 The Issuer will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar meeting the qualifications 

herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder.  The Issuer reserves the right to appoint a 

successor Paying Agent or Bond Registrar by (a) filing with the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar then 

performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying 

Agent or Bond Registrar and appointing a successor, and (b) causing notice of appointment of the successor 

Paying Agent and Bond Registrar to be given by first class mail to each Owner.  No resignation or removal 

of the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has 

accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Bond Registrar.   

 

 Every Paying Agent or Bond Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the requirements 

of K.S.A. 10-501 et seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively. 

 

Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds.  The principal of, or Redemption 

Price, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective 

dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

 

 The principal or Redemption Price of each Bond shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose 

name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the Maturity thereof, upon presentation and surrender 

of such Bond at the principal office of the Paying Agent. 

 

 The interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of such 

Bond as shown on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (a) by 

check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Owner shown on the Bond Register or at 

such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Owner; or (b) in the case of an 

interest payment to Cede & Co., by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond 

Registrar by such Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the 

electronic transfer instructions including the bank ABA routing number and account number to which such 

Owner wishes to have such transfer directed. 

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to 

any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be 

payable to the Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special Record 

Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as hereinafter 

specified in this paragraph.  The Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted 

Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be at 

least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit with the Paying Agent at 

the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect 

of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent for such deposit 

prior to the date of the proposed payment.  Following receipt of such funds the Paying Agent shall fix a 

Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less 

than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment.  The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the Issuer 

of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the Issuer, shall cause notice of the 



 

10 

proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefore to be mailed, by first 

class mail, postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Bond entitled to such notice at the address of such Owner 

as it appears on the Bond Register not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date. 

 

 The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal and Redemption Price of and interest 

on all Bonds and at least annually shall forward a copy or summary of such records to the Issuer. 

 

Section 205. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays.  In any case where a Bond 

Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of principal, Redemption Price or interest need 

not be made on such Bond Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day 

with the same force and effect as if made on such Bond Payment Date, and no interest shall accrue 

for the period after such Bond Payment Date. 

 

Section 206. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds.  The Issuer covenants that, as 

long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, it will cause the Bond Register to be kept at the office 

of the Bond Registrar as herein provided.  Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name 

of the Owner thereof on the Bond Register. 

 

 Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this Section.  

Upon surrender of any Bond at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar shall transfer 

or exchange such Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of the same Stated 

Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or 

exchange.  

 

 Bonds presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or 

instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory 

to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized agent. 

 

 In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the Bond 

Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Bond Resolution.  

The Issuer shall pay the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange 

of Bonds provided for by this Bond Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered 

bond blanks.  Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees 

of the Bond Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Bonds.  In the event any Owner fails to 

provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge 

against such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure.  

In compliance with Code § 3406, such amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from amounts 

otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Bonds. 

 

 The Issuer and the Bond Registrar shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange of 

any Bond that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been mailed by the Paying 

Agent pursuant to Article III hereof and during the period of 15 days next preceding the date of mailing of 

such notice of redemption; or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond during a period beginning 

at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the Issuer of its intent to pay 

Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of Defaulted Interest 

pursuant to this Article II. 

 

 The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond is 

registered on the Bond Register as the absolute Owner of such Bond, whether such Bond is overdue or not, 

for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and interest 

on said Bond and for all other purposes.  All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the Owner’s 



 

11 

order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the 

sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the 

contrary. 

 

 At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Bond Registrar, the Bond 

Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners (or a designated representative thereof) of 10% or 

more in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners 

whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Bond Registrar. 

 

Section 207. Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds.  Each of the 

Bonds, including any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Bonds initially delivered, 

shall be executed for and on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, 

attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, and the seal of the Issuer shall be affixed 

thereto or imprinted thereon.  The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare 

and execute the Bonds in the manner herein specified, and to cause the Bonds to be registered in 

the office of the Clerk, which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature 

of the Clerk with the seal of the Issuer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon.  The Bonds shall also 

be registered in the office of the State Treasurer, which registration shall be evidenced by the 

manual or facsimile signature of the State Treasurer with the seal of the State Treasurer affixed 

thereto or imprinted thereon. In case any officer whose signature appears on any Bonds ceases to 

be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and 

sufficient for all purposes, as if such person had remained in office until delivery.  Any Bond may 

be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of such Bond are the proper 

officers to sign such Bond although at the date of such Bond such persons may not have been such 

officers. 

 

 The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds as herein 

specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Bonds to the Bond Registrar for authentication. 

 

 The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form 

attached hereto as EXHIBIT A hereof, which shall be manually executed by an authorized officer or 

employee of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or employee sign the 

certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder at any one time.  No Bond 

shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Bond Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any 

purpose unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Bond Registrar.  

Such executed certificate of authentication upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has 

been duly authenticated and delivered under this Bond Resolution.  Upon authentication, the Bond Registrar 

shall deliver the Bonds to the Purchaser upon instructions of the Issuer or its representative. 

 

Section 208. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  If (a) any mutilated Bond is 

surrendered to the Bond Registrar or the Bond Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the 

destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (b) there is delivered to the Issuer and the Bond Registrar 

such security or indemnity as may be required by each of them, then, in the absence of notice to 

the Issuer or the Bond Registrar that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the 

Issuer shall execute and, upon the Issuer’s request, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and 

deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond 

of the same Stated Maturity and of like tenor and principal amount. 

 

 If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and 

payable, the Issuer, in its discretion, may pay such Bond instead of issuing a new Bond. 

 



 

12 

 Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the Issuer and the Paying Agent may require 

the payment by the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be 

imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) 

connected therewith. 

 

 Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior 

obligation of the Issuer, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Bond Resolution equally and ratably 

with all other Outstanding Bonds. 

 

Section 209. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment.  All Bonds that have 

been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or 

before Maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption 

and surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the 

customary practices of the Paying Agent.  The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate 

describing the Bonds so cancelled and destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such 

certificate with the Issuer. 

 

Section 210. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository.  The Issuer and Paying Agent have 

entered into a DTC Representation Letter with DTC.  The Bonds shall initially be registered to 

Cede & Co., the nominee for the Securities Depository, and no Beneficial Owner will receive 

certificates representing their respective interests in the Bonds, except in the event the Bond 

Registrar issues Replacement Bonds as provided in this Section.  It is anticipated that during the 

term of the Bonds, the Securities Depository will make book-entry transfers among its Participants 

and receive and transmit payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to the 

Participants until and unless the Bond Registrar authenticates and delivers Replacement Bonds to 

the Beneficial Owners as described in the following paragraph. 

 

 The Issuer may decide, subject to the requirements of the Operational Arrangements of DTC (or a 

successor Securities Depository), and the following provisions of this section to discontinue use of the 

system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor Securities Depository): 
 

 (a) If the Issuer determines (1) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly discharge 

its responsibilities, or (2) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository 

and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or (3) that the 

continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than 

Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; or  

 

 (b) if the Bond Registrar receives written notice from Participants having interests in not less 

than 50% of the Bonds Outstanding, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to 

such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of 

any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the 

Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, then the Bond Registrar shall notify the Owners of such determination or 

such notice and of the availability of certificates to Owners requesting the same, and the Bond Registrar 

shall register in the name of and authenticate and deliver Replacement Bonds to the Beneficial Owners or 

their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustments as it may 

find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest and previous calls for redemption; provided, that in the 

case of a determination under (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this paragraph, the Issuer, with the consent of the Bond 

Registrar, may select a successor securities depository in accordance with the following paragraph to effect 

book-entry transfers. 

 



 

13 

 In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate to the period of time 

when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Bond.  Upon the issuance of Replacement 

Bonds, all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by the Securities Depository 

shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Bond Registrar, to the extent applicable with 

respect to such Replacement Bonds.  If the Securities Depository resigns and the Issuer, the Bond Registrar 

or Owners are unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities Depository in accordance with the 

following paragraph, then the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and cause delivery of Replacement Bonds 

to Owners, as provided herein.  The Bond Registrar may rely on information from the Securities Depository 

and its Participants as to the names of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  The cost of printing, registration, 

authentication, and delivery of Replacement Bonds shall be paid for by the Issuer. 

 

 In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities, 

or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities 

and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Issuer may appoint a successor Securities Depository provided 

the Bond Registrar receives written evidence satisfactory to the Bond Registrar with respect to the ability 

of the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities.  Any such successor Securities 

Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency under the Securities and 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that operates a securities 

depository upon reasonable and customary terms.  The Bond Registrar upon its receipt of a Bond or Bonds 

for cancellation shall cause the delivery of Bonds to the successor Securities Depository in an Authorized 

Denominations and form as provided herein. 

 

Section 211. Nonpresentment of Bonds.  If any Bond is not presented for payment when the 

principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made 

available to the Paying Agent all liability of the Issuer to the Owner thereof for the payment of such 

Bond shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the 

duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of 

the Owner of such Bond, who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim 

of whatever nature on his part under this Bond Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Bond.  If 

any Bond is not presented for payment within four (4) years following the date when such Bond 

becomes due at Maturity, the Paying Agent shall repay, without liability for interest thereon, to the 

Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for payment of such Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to 

the defense of any applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the 

Issuer, and the Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the Issuer for payment, and then only 

to the extent of the amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the Issuer shall not be liable for 

any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. 

 

Section 212. Official Statement.   An Official Statement is hereby authorized to be prepared 

as necessary to conform to and describe the transaction.  The Mayor and Clerk of the Issuer are 

hereby authorized to execute the Official Statement, and the use and public distribution of the 

Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the reoffering of the Bonds is hereby 

authorized.  The proper officials of the Issuer are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a 

certificate pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the Issue Date. 

 

Section 213. Sale of the Bonds – Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Bond Purchase Agreement 

between the Issuer and the Purchaser is hereby ratified and approved.  Pursuant to the Bond 

Purchase Agreement, the Issuer agrees to sell the Bonds to the Purchaser for the Purchase Price, 

upon the terms and conditions set forth therein. 

 



 

14 

ARTICLE III 

 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 

Section 301. Redemption by Issuer.   

 

 Optional Redemption.  At the option of the Issuer, the Bonds will be subject to redemption and 

payment prior to their Stated Maturity on August 1, 2024, and thereafter, as a whole or in part (selection of 

maturities and the amount of Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed to be determined by the Issuer in such 

equitable manner as it may determine) at any time, at the Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a 

percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date.   

 

Mandatory Redemption.  The Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption and payment 

prior to Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of this Section at a Redemption 

Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date.  The 

taxes levied in Article IV hereof which are to be deposited into the Debt Service Account shall be sufficient 

to redeem, and the Issuer shall redeem on August 1 in each year, the following principal amounts of such 

Term Bonds:  

 

Principal 

Amount Year 

$185,000 2047 

60,000 2048* 

 _______________ 

    *Final Maturity 

 

At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory Redemption 

Date, the Issuer may:  (1) deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation Term Bonds subject to mandatory 

redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date, in any aggregate principal amount desired; or (2) furnish 

the Paying Agent funds, together with appropriate instructions, for the purpose of purchasing any Term 

Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date from any Owner thereof 

whereupon the Paying Agent shall expend such funds for such purpose to such extent as may be practical; 

or (3) receive a credit with respect to the mandatory redemption obligation of the Issuer under this Section 

for any Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date which, prior to 

such date, have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the mandatory redemption requirements 

of this subsection) and cancelled by the Paying Agent and not theretofore applied as a credit against any 

redemption obligation under this subsection.  Each Term Bond so delivered or previously purchased or 

redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the Issuer to redeem 

Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity on such mandatory Redemption Date, and any excess of such 

amount shall be credited on future mandatory redemption obligations for Term Bonds of the same Stated 

Maturity as designated by the Issuer, and the principal amount of Term Bonds to be redeemed by operation 

of the requirements of this Section shall be accordingly reduced.  If the Issuer intends to exercise any option 

granted by the provisions of clauses (1), (2) or (3) above, the Issuer will, on or before the 45th day next 

preceding each mandatory Redemption Date, furnish the Paying Agent a written certificate indicating to 

what extent the provisions of said clauses (1), (2) and (3) are to be complied with, with respect to such 

mandatory redemption payment. 

  

Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed.  Bonds shall be redeemed only in an 

Authorized Denomination.  When less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed and paid prior to 

their Stated Maturity, such Bonds shall be redeemed in such manner as the Issuer shall determine.  



 

15 

Bonds of less than a full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Bond Registrar in a minimum 

Authorized Denomination of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Bond Registrar may 

determine. 

 

 In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than a 

minimum Authorized Denomination are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such 

redemption a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate 

Bond of the denomination of a minimum Authorized Denomination.  If it is determined that one or more, 

but not all, of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value represented by any Bond is selected for 

redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem a minimum Authorized Denomination, the Owner or 

the Owner’s duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Bond to the Bond Registrar:  

(1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of a minimum Authorized 

Denomination of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner 

thereof, for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the 

principal amount of such Bond.  If the Owner of any such Bond fails to present such Bond to the Paying 

Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on 

the redemption date to the extent of a minimum Authorized Denomination of face value called for 

redemption (and to that extent only). 

 

Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption.  In the event the Issuer desires to call 

the Bonds for redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the 

Bond Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 45 days prior to the 

Redemption Date.  The Bond Registrar shall call Bonds for redemption and payment and shall give 

notice of such redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Bond Registrar at least 45 days 

prior to the Redemption Date of written instructions of the Issuer specifying the principal amount, 

Stated Maturities, Redemption Date and Redemption Prices of the Bonds to be called for 

redemption. The foregoing provisions of this paragraph shall not apply in the case of any mandatory 

redemption of Term Bonds hereunder, and Term Bonds shall be called by the Paying Agent for 

redemption pursuant to such mandatory redemption requirements without the necessity of any 

action by the Issuer and whether or not the Paying Agent holds moneys available and sufficient to 

effect the required redemption.  

 

 Unless waived by any Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, if the Issuer shall call any Bonds for 

redemption and payment prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, the Issuer shall give written notice of its 

intention to call and pay said Bonds to the Bond Registrar and the State Treasurer.  In addition, the Issuer 

shall cause the Bond Registrar to give written notice of redemption to the Owners of said Bonds.  Each of 

said written notices shall be deposited in the United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to the 

Redemption Date. 

 

 All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information: 

 

 (a) the Redemption Date; 

 

 (b) the Redemption Price; 

 

 (c) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case 

of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed; 

 

 (d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and 

payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease 

to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and 



 

16 

 

 (e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price, 

which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent. 

 

 The failure of any Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect 

therein shall not invalidate any redemption. 

 

 Prior to any Redemption Date, the Issuer shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money 

sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be redeemed on 

such Redemption Date. 

 

 For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, the Bond 

Registrar shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository.  It is expected that 

the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in turn, will notify 

or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners.  Any failure on the part of the Securities Depository or a 

Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having been mailed notice 

from the Bond Registrar, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial 

Owner of the Bond so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of such Bond. 

 

 Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be 

redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein specified, 

and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the Issuer defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) 

such Bonds or portion of Bonds shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption 

in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Bonds shall be paid by the Paying Agent.  

Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be payable as herein provided for 

payment of interest.  Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for 

the Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as 

provided herein.  All Bonds that have been surrendered for redemption shall be cancelled and destroyed by 

the Paying Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued. 

 

 In addition to the foregoing notice, the Issuer shall provide such notices of redemption as are 

required by the Disclosure Undertaking.  Further notice may be given by the Issuer or the Bond Registrar 

on behalf of the Issuer as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any 

portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if official 

notice thereof is given as above prescribed: 

 

 (a) Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required 

above for an official notice of redemption plus (1) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (2) 

the date of issue of the Bonds as originally issued; (3) the rate of interest borne by each Bond being 

redeemed; (4) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (5) any other descriptive information 

needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed. 

 

 (b) Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least one day before the mailing of notice 

to Owners by first class, registered or certified mail or overnight delivery, as determined by the Bond 

Registrar, to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial amounts of 

obligations of types comprising the Bonds and to one or more national information services that disseminate 

notices of redemption of obligations such as the Bonds. 

 

 (c) Each check or other transfer of funds issued for the payment of the Redemption Price of 

Bonds being redeemed shall bear or have enclosed the CUSIP number of the Bonds being redeemed with 

the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 



 

17 

 

 The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards then in effect for 

processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities and Exchange 

Commission.  Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any 

Bond. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

SECURITY FOR BONDS 
 

Section 401. Security for the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be general obligations of the Issuer 

payable as to both principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without 

limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the 

territorial limits of the Issuer.  The full faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby 

irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the 

same become due. 

 

Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax; Transfer to Debt Service Account.  The 

governing body of the Issuer shall annually make provision for the payment of principal of, 

premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same become due by, to the extent necessary, 

levying and collecting the necessary taxes upon all of the taxable tangible property within the Issuer 

in the manner provided by law. 

 

 The taxes referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the several years, 

respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as the other ad 

valorem taxes of the Issuer are levied and collected.  The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be deposited 

in the Bond and Interest Fund, shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer shall 

thereafter be transferred to the Debt Service Account and shall be used solely for the payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due, taking into account any scheduled 

mandatory redemptions, and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent.  

 

 If at any time said taxes are not collected in time to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds 

when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or interest out of the general 

funds of the Issuer and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended when said taxes are 

collected.  

 

 

ARTICLE V 

 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND OTHER MONEYS 
 

Section 501. Creation of Funds and Accounts.  Simultaneously with the issuance of the 

Bonds, there shall be created within the Treasury of the Issuer the following Funds and Accounts: 

 

 (a) Improvement Fund for General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B; 

 

 (b) Debt Service Account for General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B (within the Bond and 

Interest Fund);  



 

18 

 

 The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the provisions 

of this Bond Resolution so long as the Bonds are Outstanding. 

 

Section 502. Deposit of Bond Proceeds.  The net proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds 

shall be deposited simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds as follows: 

 

 (a) All accrued interest received from the sale of the Bonds and $6,594.58, representing a 

portion of the interest on the Bonds during construction of the Improvements, shall be deposited in the Debt 

Service Account. 

 

 (b) The remaining balance of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds in the amount 

of $226,767.92 shall be deposited in the Improvement Fund. 

 

Section 503. Application of Moneys in the Improvement Fund.  Moneys in the Improvement 

Fund shall be used for the sole purpose of:  (a) paying the costs of the Improvements, in accordance 

with the plans and specifications therefor approved by the Governing Body and on file in the office 

of the Clerk, including any alterations in or amendments to said plans and specifications deemed 

advisable and approved by the Governing Body; (b) paying interest on the Bonds during 

construction of the Improvements; (c) refunding the Refunded Interest; and (d) paying Costs of 

Issuance. 

 

 A portion of the moneys in the Improvement Fund in the amount of $1,000.00 shall be paid and 

transferred to the Series 2012A Paying Agent with instructions to apply such amount to the payment of the 

Refunded Interest on February 1, 2017. 

 

 Upon completion of the Improvements and refunding of the Refunded Interest, any surplus 

remaining in the Improvement Fund shall be deposited in the Debt Service Account. 

 

Section 504. Substitution of Improvements; Reallocation of Proceeds.   

 

 (a) The Issuer may elect for any reason to substitute or add other public improvements to be 

financed with proceeds of the Bonds provided the following conditions are met:  (1) the Substitute 

Improvement and the issuance of general obligation bonds to pay the cost of the Substitute Improvement 

has been duly authorized by the Governing Body in accordance with the laws of the State; (2) a resolution 

authorizing the use of the proceeds of the Bonds to pay the Financeable Costs of the Substitute Improvement 

has been duly adopted by the Governing Body pursuant to this Section, (3) the Attorney General of the 

State has approved the amendment made by such resolution to the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds 

to include the Substitute Improvements; and (4) the use of the proceeds of the Bonds to pay the Financeable 

Cost of the Substitute Improvement will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds under State 

or federal law. 

 

 (b) The Issuer may reallocate expenditure of Bond proceeds among all Improvements financed 

by the Bonds; provided the following conditions are met:  (1) the reallocation is approved by the Governing 

Body; (2) the reallocation shall not cause the proceeds of the Bonds allocated to any Improvement to exceed 

the Financeable Costs of the Improvement; and (3) the reallocation will not adversely affect the tax-exempt 

status of the Bonds under State or federal law. 

 

Section 505. Application of Moneys in Debt Service Account.  All amounts paid and credited 

to the Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the Issuer for the sole purpose of paying 

the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due 



 

19 

and the usual and customary fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.  The 

Treasurer is authorized and directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Account sums sufficient to 

pay both principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of 

the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent as and when the same become due, and to forward such sums 

to the Paying Agent in a manner which ensures that the Paying Agent will receive immediately 

available funds in such amounts on or before the Business Day immediately preceding the dates 

when such principal, interest and fees of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent will become due.  

If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners of Bonds are no longer entitled to enforce 

payment of the Bonds or the interest thereon, the Paying Agent shall return said funds to the Issuer.  

All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with 

and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Bond Resolution and shall be held in trust by 

the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds entitled to payment from such moneys.  

 

 Any moneys or investments remaining in the Debt Service Account after the retirement of the 

Bonds shall be transferred and paid into the Bond and Interest Fund. 

 

Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys.  Moneys in each of the Funds and Accounts 

shall be deposited in accordance with laws of the State, in a bank, savings and loan association or 

savings bank organized under the laws of the State, any other state or the United States:  (a) which 

has a main or branch office located in the Issuer; or (b) if no such entity has a main or branch office 

located in the Issuer, with such an entity that has a main or branch office located in the county or 

counties in which the Issuer is located.  All such depositaries shall be members of the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation, or otherwise as permitted by State law.  All such deposits shall be 

invested in Permitted Investments as set forth in this Article or shall be adequately secured as 

provided by the laws of the State.  All moneys held in the Funds and Accounts shall be kept separate 

and apart from all other funds of the Issuer so that there shall be no commingling with any other 

funds of the Issuer. 

 

 Moneys held in any Fund or Account may be invested in accordance with this Bond Resolution and 

the Federal Tax Certificate in Permitted Investments; provided, however, that no such investment shall be 

made for a period extending longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for the 

purpose for which such fund was created.  All earnings on any investments held in any Fund or Account 

shall accrue to and become a part of such Fund or Account; provided that, during the period of construction 

of the Improvements, earnings on the investment of such funds may, at the discretion of the Issuer, be 

credited to the Debt Service Account. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI 

 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

Section 601. Remedies.  The provisions of the Bond Resolution, including the covenants and 

agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners of the 

Bonds.  If an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less 

than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal 

benefit and protection of all Owners of Bonds similarly situated: 

 

 (a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights 

of such Owner or Owners against the Issuer and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and 



 

20 

compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Bond Resolution or by the Constitution and 

laws of the State; 

 

 (b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the Issuer, its officers, 

agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and 

 

 (c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which 

may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Bonds. 

 

Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners.  The covenants and agreements of the Issuer 

contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the 

Owners of any or all of the Bonds, all of which Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference 

or priority of one Bond over any other Bond in the application of the funds herein pledged to the 

payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, 

date of maturity and right of prior redemption as provided in this Bond Resolution.  No one or more 

Owners secured hereby shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, 

disturb or prejudice the security granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, 

except in the manner herein provided, and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, 

had and maintained for the equal benefit of all Outstanding Bonds. 

 

Section 603. Remedies Cumulative.  No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is intended 

to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to 

every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other 

remedy conferred herein.  No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of 

any Bond shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall 

impair any rights or remedies thereon.  No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or 

power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a 

waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein.  Every substantive right and every remedy 

conferred upon the Owners of the Bonds by this Bond Resolution may be enforced and exercised 

from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  If action or proceedings taken by any 

Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right or exercise any remedy has been 

discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to such Owner, 

then, and in every such case, the Issuer and the Owners of the Bonds shall be restored to their 

former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of 

the Owners shall continue as if no such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

 

DEFEASANCE 
 

Section 701. Defeasance.  When any or all of the Bonds, redemption premium, if any, or 

scheduled interest payments thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements 

contained in this Bond Resolution and the pledge of the Issuer’s faith and credit hereunder and all 

other rights granted hereby shall terminate with respect to the Bonds or scheduled interest payments 

thereon so paid and discharged.  Bonds, redemption premium, if any, or scheduled interest 

payments thereon shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this 

Bond Resolution if there has been deposited with the Paying Agent, or other commercial bank or 

trust company located in the State and having full trust powers, at or prior to the Stated Maturity or 

Redemption Date of said Bonds or the interest payments thereon, in trust for and irrevocably 



 

21 

appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the interest to be 

earned on any such Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal of 

or Redemption Price of said Bonds and/or interest accrued to the Stated Maturity or Redemption 

Date, or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such 

payments.  If the amount to be so deposited is based on the Redemption Price of any Bonds, no 

such satisfaction shall occur until (a) the Issuer has elected to redeem such Bonds, and (b) either 

notice of such redemption has been given, or the Issuer has given irrevocable instructions, or shall 

have provided for an escrow agent to give irrevocable instructions, to the Bond Registrar to give 

such notice of redemption in compliance with Article III hereof.  Any money and Defeasance 

Obligations that at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or 

trust company by or on behalf of the Issuer, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the 

Bonds, shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or other bank 

or trust company in trust for the respective Owners of the Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are 

hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof.  All money and Defeasance 

Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or such bank or trust company shall be deemed to be 

deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions of this Bond Resolution.   

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

 

TAX COVENANTS 
 

Section 801. General Covenants.  The Issuer covenants and agrees that it will comply with:  

(a) all applicable provisions of the Code necessary to maintain the exclusion from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds; and (b) all provisions and requirements 

of the Federal Tax Certificate.  The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute 

the Federal Tax Certificate in a form approved by Bond Counsel, for and on behalf of and as the 

act and deed of the Issuer.  The Issuer will, in addition, adopt such other ordinances or resolutions 

and take such other actions as may be necessary to comply with the Code and with all other 

applicable future laws, regulations, published rulings and judicial decisions, in order to ensure that 

the interest on the Bonds will remain excluded from federal gross income, to the extent any such 

actions can be taken by the Issuer. 

 

Section 802. Survival of Covenants.  The covenants contained in this Article and in the Federal 

Tax Certificate shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the defeasance of the Bonds 

pursuant to Article VII hereof or any other provision of this Bond Resolution until such time as is 

set forth in the Federal Tax Certificate. 

 

 

ARTICLE IX 

 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 901. Disclosure Requirements.  The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute the Disclosure Undertaking in a form approved by Bond Counsel, for and on 

behalf of and as the act and deed of the Issuer.  The Issuer hereby covenants with the Purchaser and 

the Beneficial Owners to provide and disseminate such information as further set forth in the 

Disclosure Undertaking, which are incorporated herein by reference.  Such covenant shall be for 

the benefit of and enforceable by the Purchaser and the Beneficial Owners. 

 



 

22 

Section 902. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements.  In the event the 

Issuer fails to comply in a timely manner with its covenants contained in the preceding section, the 

Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner may make demand for such compliance by written notice 

to the Issuer.  In the event the Issuer does not remedy such noncompliance within 10 days of receipt 

of such written notice, the Purchaser or any Beneficial Owner may in its discretion, without notice 

or demand, proceed to enforce compliance by a suit or suits in equity for the specific performance 

of such covenant or agreement contained in the preceding section or for the enforcement of any 

other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, as the Purchaser and/or any Beneficial Owner shall 

deem effectual to protect and enforce any of the duties of the Issuer under such preceding section.  

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Bond Resolution, failure of the Issuer to comply with 

its covenants contained in the preceding section shall not be considered an Event of Default under 

this Bond Resolution. 

 

 

ARTICLE X 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Section 1001. Annual Audit.  Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the Issuer will 

cause an audit to be made of the financial statements of the Issuer for the preceding Fiscal Year by 

an Independent Accountant.  Such audit shall at all times during the usual business hours be open 

to the examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any Owner of any of the Bonds, or by anyone 

acting for or on behalf of such taxpayer or Owner.  Upon payment of the reasonable cost of 

preparing and mailing the same, a copy of any annual audit will, upon request, be sent to any Owner 

or prospective Owner.  As soon as possible after the completion of the annual audit, the governing 

body of the Issuer shall review such audit, and if the audit discloses that proper provision has not 

been made for all of the requirements of this Bond Resolution, the Issuer shall promptly cure such 

deficiency. 

 

Section 1002. Amendments.  The rights and duties of the Issuer and the Owners, and the terms 

and provisions of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time 

in any respect by resolution of the Issuer with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a 

majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an 

instrument or instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the 

manner of a deed to be recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, 

but no such modification or alteration shall:  

 

 (a) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond;  

 

 (b) effect a reduction in the amount which the Issuer is required to pay as principal of or interest 

on any Bond;  

 

 (c) permit preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond; or 

 

 (d) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written consent to any 

modification or alteration of the provisions of this Bond Resolution.  

 

 Any provision of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by 

resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the Issuer at any time in any legal respect with the written 

consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding.  



 

23 

 

 Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the Issuer may amend or supplement this Bond 

Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity herein, to 

grant to or confer upon the Owners any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully 

be granted to or conferred upon the Owners, to more precisely identify the Improvements, to reallocate 

proceeds of the Bonds among Improvements, to provide for Substitute Improvements, to conform this Bond 

Resolution to the Code or future applicable federal law concerning tax-exempt obligations, or in connection 

with any other change therein which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Owners.   

 

 Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Bonds or of this Bond Resolution, to 

which the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution 

adopted by the governing body of the Issuer amending or supplementing the provisions of this Bond 

Resolution and shall be deemed to be a part of this Bond Resolution.  A certified copy of every such 

amendatory or supplemental resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Bond Resolution shall always be 

kept on file in the office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the Owner of any Bond 

or a prospective purchaser or owner of any Bond authorized by this Bond Resolution, and upon payment 

of the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental 

resolution or of this Bond Resolution will be sent by the Clerk to any such Owner or prospective Owner. 

 

 Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective 

until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the resolution of the Issuer hereinabove provided for, 

duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of the Bonds 

then Outstanding.  It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference to such 

amendment or modification.  

 

 The Issuer shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this Bond 

Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Bond Resolution. 

 

Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners.  Any notice, consent, 

request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be 

in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such 

Owners in person or by agent appointed in writing.  Proof of the execution of any such instrument 

or of the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following 

manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Bond Resolution, and shall be conclusive 

in favor of the Issuer and the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted 

under any such instrument, namely: 

 

 (a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by 

a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take acknowledgments within such 

jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof, 

or by affidavit of any witness to such execution. 

 

 (b) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification 

of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register. 

 

 In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Bonds Outstanding have 

given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Bond Resolution, 

Bonds owned by the Issuer shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this Bond 

Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any such 

request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Owners know 

to be so owned shall be so disregarded.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bonds so owned which have been 



 

24 

pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of 

the Owners the pledgee’s right so to act with respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the Issuer. 

 

Section 1004. Notices.  Any notice, request, complaint, demand or other communication required 

or desired to be given or filed under this Bond Resolution shall be in writing, given to the Notice 

Representative at the Notice Address and shall be deemed duly given or filed if the same shall be:  (a) 

duly mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid; or (b) communicated via fax, with 

electronic or telephonic confirmation of receipt.  Copies of such notices shall also be given to the 

Paying Agent.  The Issuer, the Paying Agent and the Purchaser may from time to time designate, by 

notice given hereunder to the others of such parties, such other address to which subsequent notices, 

certificates or other communications shall be sent. 

 

 All notices given by:  (a) certified or registered mail as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the 

date they are so mailed; (b) fax as aforesaid shall be deemed duly given as of the date of confirmation of 

receipt.  If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of regular mail service or for any other reason, 

it is impossible or impractical to mail any notice in the manner herein provided, then such other form of notice 

as shall be made with the approval of the Paying Agent shall constitute a sufficient notice. 

 

Section 1005. Electronic Transactions.  The issuance of the Bonds and the transactions related 

thereto and described herein may be conducted and documents may be stored by electronic means. 

 

Section 1006. Further Authority.  The officers and officials of the Issuer, including the Mayor 

and Clerk, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such actions as 

they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this Bond 

Resolution and to make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, 

statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which 

they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such 

necessity or advisability. 

 

Section 1007. Severability.  If any section or other part of this Bond Resolution, whether large 

or small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the 

other provisions of this Bond Resolution. 

 

Section 1008. Governing Law.  This Bond Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and 

construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State. 

 

Section 1009. Repeal.  Resolution No. 08-25-16B of the City adopted by the governing on 

August 25, 2016, is hereby repealed. This Bond Resolution shall supersede Resolution No. 08-25-

16B. 

 

Section 1010. Effective Date.  This Bond Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from 

and after its adoption by the governing body of the Issuer. 

 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

 

(Signature Page to Bond Resolution) 

 ADOPTED by the governing body of the Issuer on September 8, 2016. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)              

       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

      

Janeice Rawles, Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

      

Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 
(FORM OF BONDS) 

 

 

REGISTERED        REGISTERED 

NUMBER              $          
 

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository 

Trust Company, a New York Corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for 

registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered 

in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized 

representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other 

entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, 

PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 

ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & 

Co., has an interest herein. 

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF KANSAS 

CITY OF EDGERTON 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND 

SERIES 2016-B 

 

 

Interest  Maturity   Dated    CUSIP: 

Rate: _______% Date: August 1, 20____  Date:  September 15, 2016 

 

 

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

 

 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  That the City of Edgerton, State of Kansas 

(the “Issuer”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted and promises to pay to the 

Registered Owner shown above, or registered assigns, but solely from the source and in the manner herein 

specified, the Principal Amount shown above on the Maturity Date shown above, unless called for 

redemption prior to said Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum shown 

above (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from the Dated Date shown 

above, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable 

semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2017 (the “Interest 

Payment Dates”), until the Principal Amount has been paid. 

 

 Method and Place of Payment.  The principal or redemption price of this Bond shall be paid at 

maturity or upon earlier redemption to the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the maturity or 

redemption date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal office of the Treasurer 

of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas (the “Paying Agent” and “Bond Registrar”).  The interest payable 

on this Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered 

on the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date(s) 

for such interest, which shall be the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next 



 
 

 

A-2 

 

preceding the Interest Payment Date.  Such interest shall be payable (a) by check or draft mailed by the 

Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner shown on the Bond Register or at such other address 

as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner; or (b) in the case of an interest 

payment to Cede & Co. by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar 

by such Registered Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the 

electronic transfer instructions including the bank, ABA routing number and account number to which such 

Registered Owner wishes to have such transfer directed.  The principal or redemption price of and interest 

on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency that, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is 

legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest not punctually paid will be paid in the 

manner established in the within defined Bond Resolution. 

 

 Definitions.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 

meanings assigned to such terms in the hereinafter defined Bond Resolution. 

 

 Authorization of Bonds.  This Bond is one of an authorized series of Bonds of the Issuer 

designated “General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B,” aggregating the principal amount of $245,000 (the 

“Bonds”) issued for the purposes set forth in the Ordinance of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the 

Bonds and the Resolution of the Issuer prescribing the form and details of the Bonds (collectively, the 

“Bond Resolution”).  The Bonds are issued by the authority of and in full compliance with the provisions, 

restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State of Kansas, including K.S.A. 10-101 to 

10-125, inclusive, K.S.A. 10-427 et seq., K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., Charter Ordinance No. 22 of the Issuer and 

Article 12, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, all as amended and supplemented from time 

to time, and all other provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto. 

 

 General Obligations.  The Bonds constitute general obligations of the Issuer payable as to both 

principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount 

upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the Issuer.  The full 

faith, credit and resources of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due. 

 

 Redemption Prior to Maturity.  The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth 

in the Bond Resolution.  

 

 Book-Entry System.  The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no 

physical distribution of bond certificates to be made except as provided in the Bond Resolution.  One Bond 

certificate with respect to each date on which the Bonds are stated to mature or with respect to each form 

of Bonds, registered in the nominee name of the Securities Depository, is being issued and required to be 

deposited with the Securities Depository and immobilized in its custody.  The book-entry system will 

evidence positions held in the Bonds by the Securities Depository’s participants, beneficial ownership of 

the Bonds in authorized denominations being evidenced in the records of such participants.  Transfers of 

ownership shall be effected on the records of the Securities Depository and its participants pursuant to rules 

and procedures established by the Securities Depository and its participants.  The Issuer and the Bond 

Registrar will recognize the Securities Depository nominee, while the Registered Owner of this Bond, as 

the owner of this Bond for all purposes, including (i) payments of principal of, and redemption premium, 

if any, and interest on, this Bond, (ii) notices and (iii) voting.  Transfer of principal, interest and any 

redemption premium payments to participants of the Securities Depository, and transfer of principal, 

interest and any redemption premium payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds by participants of the 

Securities Depository will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of such beneficial 

owners.  The Issuer and the Bond Registrar will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments 

or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by the Securities Depository, the 



 
 

 

A-3 

 

Securities Depository nominee, its participants or persons acting through such participants.  While the 

Securities Depository nominee is the owner of this Bond, notwithstanding the provision hereinabove 

contained, payments of principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be made 

in accordance with existing arrangements among the Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Securities 

Depository. 

 

 Transfer and Exchange.  EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE BOND 

RESOLUTION, THIS GLOBAL BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN 

PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A 

SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR 

SECURITIES DEPOSITORY.  This Bond may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Bond 

Resolution, only on the Bond Register kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, 

upon surrender of this Bond, together with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange 

satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner’s duly 

authorized agent, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of the same 

maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor 

as provided in the Bond Resolution and upon payment of the charges therein prescribed.  The Issuer shall 

pay all costs incurred in connection with the issuance, payment and initial registration of the Bonds and the 

cost of a reasonable supply of bond blanks.  The Issuer and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person 

in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose 

of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon 

and for all other purposes.  The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in Authorized Denominations. 

 

Authentication.  This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled 

to any security or benefit under the hereinafter defined Bond Resolution until the Certificate of 

Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Bond Registrar. 

 

 IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions, and things required to 

be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been properly done and performed 

and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of the Issuer, including this series of bonds, does not exceed any 

constitutional or statutory limitation. 

 

  



 
 

 

A-4 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or 

facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its seal 

to be affixed hereto or imprinted hereon. 

 

       CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

 

[(Facsimile Seal)]     By:    (facsimile)    

        Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:    (facsimile)    

 Clerk 

 

  



 
 

 

A-5 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND REGISTRATION 
 

 This Bond is one of a series of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016-B, of the City of Edgerton, 

Kansas, described in the within-mentioned Bond Resolution. 

 

Registration Date:     

 

       Office of the State Treasurer, 

         Topeka, Kansas, 

       as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 

 

 

       By:       

 

Registration Number:     

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK 
 

STATE OF KANSAS   ) 

     )  SS. 

COUNTY OF JOHNSON  ) 

 

 The undersigned, Clerk of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, does hereby certify that the within Bond 

has been duly registered in my office according to law as of September 15, 2016. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

(Facsimile Seal)      By:    (facsimile)    

        Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF STATE TREASURER 
 

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS 

 

 RON ESTES, Treasurer of the State of Kansas, does hereby certify that a transcript of the 

proceedings leading up to the issuance of this Bond has been filed in the office of the State Treasurer, and 

that this Bond was registered in such office according to law on ________________. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

(Seal)      By:         

        Treasurer of the State of Kansas 

 

 

 



 

A-6 

 

 

BOND ASSIGNMENT 
 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer to 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address) 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or Taxpayer Identification No.) 

 

the Bond to which this assignment is affixed in the outstanding principal amount of $___________, standing 

in the name of the undersigned on the books of the Bond Registrar.  The undersigned do(es) hereby 

irrevocably constitute and appoint ____________________ as agent to transfer said Bond on the books of 

said Bond Registrar with full power of substitution in the premises.   

 

Dated              

      Name 

 

             

      Social Security or 

      Taxpayer Identification No. 

 

             

      Signature (Sign here exactly as name(s) 

      appear on the face of Certificate) 

 

      Signature guarantee: 

 

 

      By        

 

 

 



 

A-7 

 

 

 

 

LEGAL OPINION 

 

 The following is a true and correct copy of the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., 

Bond Counsel, which was dated and issued as of the date of original issuance and delivery of such Bonds: 

 

 

GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

2405 Grand Boulevard 

Suite 1100 

Kansas City, Missouri  64108 

 

 

(PRINTED LEGAL OPINION) 

 

 



CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 
Council Meeting Date:   September 8, 2016 
 
Agenda Item: Continuation of Public Hearing 
 Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   Completion of ELHC XIV, LLC Project  
 
Hearing Notice Published:   August 17, 2016 in the Gardner News 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has previously issued $38,500,000 in industrial revenue bonds for the benefit of ELHC XIV, a Kansas 
limited liability company (“ELHC XIV”), the proceeds of which were used to acquire, construct and equip an 
approximately 822,500 sq. ft. spec warehouse and distribution facility to be located at 19400 Montrose Street in Edgerton, 
Kansas (the “Project”).  ELHC XIV subsequently subleased the Project to an Amazon affiliate. 
 
 ELHC XIV is requesting an additional $25 million in industrial revenue bonds to complete the Project.  The 
additional bonds will be issued under the existing bond indenture. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 The City opened a public hearing on August 25, 2016.  At that time, the cost-benefit analysis was not complete so 
the public hearing was continued to this meeting.  A notice of the public hearing was published at least seven days prior to 
the August 25, 2016 meeting.  Written notice of the continuation of the public hearing has also been provided to the 
County and the School District.  The Council should take comments from the public.  A new public hearing is required for 
the Project because the total cost of the Project has increased.  
 
Cost-Benefit Report 
 
 Columbia Capital Management, LLC has prepared a cost-benefit report for the Project using the higher cost 
amount.  The City should consider the cost-benefit report and ask any questions the Council may have about the report. 
 
Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
 The City previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 
LLC (“Edgerton Land”) for constructing various projects in the Logistics Park-Kansas City, and provided for the issuance 
of up to $1,000,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds.  The Master Resolution of Intent allows Edgerton Land to assign 
portions of the Master Resolution of Intent to various companies that locate within the park. 
 

The City has previously assigned $38,500,000 of the Resolution of Intent to ELHC XIV for acquiring, 
constructing and equipping the Project.  The partial assignment of the Master Resolution of Intent now being considered 
assigns an additional $25,000,000 of the Master Resolution of Intent to ELHC XIV for the purpose of completing the 
construction, acquisition and equipping of the Project. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 09-06-16B 

 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, 

LLC TO ELHC XIV, LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further 

promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons, 

firms or corporations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-10A on July 8, 2010, as amended by 

Resolution No. 04-25-13A adopted on April 25, 2013 and Resolution No. 04-09-15A on April 9, 2015  

(collectively, the “Resolution of Intent”) determining the intent of the City to issue its industrial revenue 

bonds in multiple series, the aggregate amount of all series not to exceed $1,000,000,000 (the “Bonds”), 

to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving and equipping the Logistics 

Park Projects (as defined in the Resolution of Intent) for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 

LLC (the “Developer”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intent permits the Developer, with the consent of the City, to 

assign a portion of its interest in the Resolution of Intent to another entity, thereby conferring on such 

entity the benefits of the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related thereto; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has previously assigned $38,000,000 of its interest in the Resolution 

of Intent to ELHC XIV, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”), for the purposes of 

permitting the Company to acquire, construct and equip a commercial project, consisting of an 

approximately 822,500 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “ELHC Project”), to be located at 

19400 Montrose Street in Edgerton, Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign an additional $25,000,000 of its interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purpose of permitting the Company to complete the 

acquisition, construction and equipping of the ELHC Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to such partial assignment of the Resolution of Intent to 

the Company. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent.  The Governing Body of the City 

hereby consents to the assignment by the Developer of $25,000,000 of the Developer’s interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purposes of completing the ELHC Project, which is a 

Logistics Park Project.  The City agrees that the Company will now be entitled to the benefits of the 

Resolution of Intent to the same extent and on the same terms as the Developer with respect to the 

completion of the ELHC Project. 



 -2- 

Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
ELHC XIV, LLC Project, Series 2016 

 

 Section 2.  Authorization to Proceed.  The Company is authorized to proceed with the completion 

of the acquisition, construction and equipping of the ELHC Project, and to advance such funds as may be 

necessary to accomplish such purposes, and, to the extent permitted by law, the City will reimburse the 

Company for all expenditures paid or incurred therefor out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.  Benefit of Resolution.  This Resolution will inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Company.  The Company may, with the prior written consent of the City, assign its interest in this 

Resolution and the Resolution of Intent to another entity, and such assignee will be entitled to the benefits of 

this Resolution, the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related hereto. 

 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 8th day of September, 2016. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]  Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!
September!5,!2016!
!
Ms.!Beth!Linn!
City!Administrator!
City!of!Edgerton!
404!East!Nelson!
Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!
!
RE:$Revised$Cost-Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$XIV,$LLC$
!
Dear!Beth:!
!
Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costIbenefit! analysis! related! to! the! projected!
property!tax!abatement!to!be!granted!by!the!City!to!applicant!ELHC!XIV,!LLC,!related!to!
the! construction! of! a! 822,500! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility! in!
Logistics! Park! Kansas! City! (LPKC).! The! Edgerton! City! Council! previously! approved! a!
property! tax! abatement! for! this!project.!This! revised! costIbenefit! analysis! reflects! the!
tenant’s! request! for! additional! industrial! revenue! bond! issuance! authority! resulting!
from! increased! buildIout! costs.! The! terms! and! conditions! of! the! previously! approved!
property!tax!abatement!will!not!change.!
!
The! purpose! of! this! analysis! is! to! satisfy! the! City’s! requirement! pursuant! to! KSA! 12I
1749d! or! KSA! 79I251(a)(1)! to! undertake! a! costIbenefit! analysis! before! granting! a!
property!tax!abatement.!Consistent!with!City!policy!for!development!within!LPKC,!this!
analysis! reflects! the!City’s!previous!decision! to! grant! a!100%!property! tax! abatement!
for! 10! years! with! the! applicant! paying! an! annual! paymentIinIlieuIofItaxes! equal! to!
$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!
!
Unlike! our! original! analysis! for! this! project,!we! now! know! the! tenant! for! the! project!
(Amazon)!and!have! included!information!about!their!employment!expectations!at! this!
site.!This!change!is!the!driver!of!the!material!changes!in!this!analysis!versus!our!original!
report!of!June!2015.!
!
BACKGROUND 
As!part!of!negotiations!with!the!original!master!developer!on!the!potential! location!of!
LPKC! in! Edgerton,! the! Edgerton! City! Council! approved! an! incentives! program! that!
provides!tenIyear!property!tax!abatements!for!projects!locating!in!LPKC.!The!purpose!of!
these! abatements! was! to! ensure! that! rents! paid! by! the! eventual! users! of! buildings!
constructed! by! the! master! developer! would! be! competitive! against!
warehouse/distribution!developments!in!Olathe,!south!Kansas!City,!Riverside!and!those!
located! in! other! cities,! including! Dallas,! Chicago,! Memphis! and! Indianapolis.! Like!
Edgerton,!these!communities!also!have!incentives!programs!in!place!for!warehouse!and!
distribution!facilities.!



  Revised CBA for ELHC XIV, LLC • 2 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

The! original! master! developer! reported—and! its! successor,! NorthPoint!
Development/Edgerton! Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC)! continues! to! make! the!
argument—that,! without! the! abatement! incentives,! largeIscale! warehouse! and!
distribution! facilities! would! not!materialize! in! LPKC! and! certainly! not! at! the! pace! of!
development!LPKC!has!seen!in!recent!years:!the!presence!of!the!abatements!was!and!is!
a!necessary!condition!to!the!development!of!the!project.!This!position!is!underscored!by!
the!economic!development!grant!totaling!$1.8!million!the!City!made!directly!to!Amazon!
as!an!inducement!to!locate!in!LPKC.!
 
ABATEMENT MECHANICS 
Under! Kansas! law,! every! ad! valorem! tax! abatement! is! a! 100%! abatement.! Cities!
granting! an! abatement! have! the! right! to! negotiate! paymentsIinIlieuIofItax! (PILOT)!
payments!from!the!abatement!beneficiary!to!reduce!the!effective!value!of!the!abatement!
to! that! party.! PILOT! payments! are! distributed! by! Kansas! counties! to! all! taxing!
jurisdictions! affected! by! the! abatement! in! the! same! proportion! as! regular! property!
taxes.!
!
Property! tax! abatements! effectively! defer! a! portion! of! the! tax! benefit! on! new!
development! for! a! period! of! up! to! 10! years.! Although! property! tax! abatements! can!
create! a! loss! of! status! quo! ante! tax! revenues! for! taxing! jurisdictions,! abatements! at!
LPKC!have!a!very!limited!impact!on!existing!tax!revenues.!Because!the!vast!majority!of!
undeveloped!land!within!the!boundaries!of!LPKC!is!classified!for!property!tax!purposes!
as!“farming!or!ranch!operations,”!status!quo!ante!property!taxes!in!the!aggregate!within!
LPKC!tend!to!total!less!than!$50!per!acre!per!year.!
!
ECONOMICS 
The! subject! property! is! approximately! 27.5! acres! in! size! and!will! house! an! estimated!
822,500!square! foot!distribution!and!warehousing! facility!with!Amazon!as! the! tenant.!
Pursuant!to!the!City’s!agreement!with!the!master!developer,!this!analysis!assumes!the!
City!will!provide! the!applicant!with!a!100%!property! tax!abatement! for!10!years.!We!
have! further! assumed! that,! consistent!with! its! agreement!with! the!master! developer,!
the!City!will!impose!a!$0.21!per!square!foot!per!year!PILOT,!or!$172,725!per!year.!!
!
The!table!below!reflects!the!immediate!impact!on!property!tax/PILOT!receipts!from!the!
subject!property,!assuming!a!status!quo!ante! tax!burden!of!$50!per!acre!per!year!and!
based!upon!November!2015!levy!rates!published!by!Johnson!County.!
!
    EXISTING TAXES NEW PILOTs ANNUAL NET TAX  
ENTITY LEVY % of TOTAL  LOST PAID GAIN/(LOSS) 
State of KS 1.500 0.96%  $(13) $ 1,657  $ 1,644  
Johnson Co. 19.582 12.53%  (172)  21,635   21,463  
JCCC 9.469 6.06%  (83)  10,462   10,378  
JCPRD 3.101 1.98%  (27)  3,426   3,399  
Edgerton 33.622 21.51%  (296)  37,147   36,851  
USD 231 Uniform 20.000 12.79%  (176)  22,097   21,921  
USD 231 Capital 8.000 5.12%  (70)  8,839   8,768  
USD 231 Other 25.015 16.00%  (220)  27,637   27,417  
USD 231 Bond 16.170 10.34%  (142)  17,865   17,723  
Fire Dist #1 15.965 10.21%  (140)  17,639   17,498  
Library 3.912 2.50%  (34)  4,322   4,288  
       
 156.336 100.00%  $(1,375) $ 172,725  $ 171,350  



  Revised CBA for ELHC XIV, LLC • 3 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS DETAILS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
KSA! 12I1749d(2)! requires! notification! of! anticipated! abatements! only! to! counties! or!
school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!City,!
Johnson! County! and! USD! 231! Gardner/Edgerton! Schools! (the!District).!We! have! not!
calculated! the! costIbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the!
analysis! to! include! “the! effect! of! the! exemption! on! state! revenues.”! Our! modeling!
includes!such!an!estimate.!
!
Our! proprietary! costIbenefit! modeling! relies! on! a! number! of! key! assumptions! in! the!
calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson! County! and! the! District.!
Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!are!
based! upon! dialogue! with! subject! matter! experts,! including! staff! of! the! Kansas!
Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!
!
• An!evaluation!of! the!direct! costs!and!benefits!of! the!project.!Columbia’s!model!

does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinIoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputIoutput!
multipliers.!
!

• A! tenIyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!
maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!
• Direct!costs!to!the!City,!the!County,!the!school!district!and!the!State!as!estimated!

by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or!
conversations!with!key!staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!
Kansas.!Please!note!our!analysis!assumes!the!return!of!a!school!finance!formula!
that!provides!aid!to!the!District!on!a!per!pupil!basis!(see!below).!

!
• Where! applicable,! reliance! upon! statistical! data! as! reported! in! the! 2010! US!

Census.!
!
• The! use! of! a! discount! rate! comprised! of! two! components:! a! riskIfree! rate! of!

return! (the! current! yield! of! the! onItheIrun! 10Iyear! US! Treasury)! plus! a! risk!
premium!of! two! (2)! percent.! The! value! of! the! discount! rate! is! a! proxy! for! the!
opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!
property!and/or!sales!tax!revenues!that!would!be!generated!by!the!development.!
Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!and!placed!them!
in!an!alternative! investment!with! the!same!risk!characteristics,!what!would!be!
its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!
TREATMENT OF SCHOOL FINANCE FORMULA 
As!of!the!date!of!this!analysis,!the!mechanics!of!public!school!finances!in!Kansas!remain!
in! flux.! The! Kansas! legislature,! through! special! session! during! the! summer! of! 2016,!
resolved!immediate!judicial!concerns!about!funding!equity!that!might!have!delayed!the!
start!of!the!2016/17!school!year.!But,!lower!Kansas!courts!have!found!that!the!current!
block!grant!funding!mechanism!is!constitutionally!flawed!and!falls!hundreds!of!millions!
of!dollars!short!of!the!amount!of!state!aid!to!schools!necessary!to!satisfy!the!“adequate”!



  Revised CBA for ELHC XIV, LLC • 4 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

funding! requirement!within! the! state! constitution;! appeals! to! that! lower! court! ruling!
remain!before!the!Kansas!Supreme!Court!and!are!as!yet!unresolved.!!
!
For! the! purposes! of! our! analysis,!we! have! assumed! the! existence! of! a! school! funding!
formula!that! increases!or!decreases!district!state!aid!based!upon!the!district’s!student!
enrollment.! The! district! court’s! findings! on! the! funding! adequacy! issue! were!
particularly! critical! of! the! current! block! grant! formula’s! failure! to! recognize! and!
compensate!schools!for!the!impacts!of!changes!in!enrollment.!Our!costIbenefit!modeling!
assumes!a!return!to!the!capitationIbased!funding!approach!that!has!prevailed!in!Kansas!
since!the!1990s.!
!
For!the!treatment!of!costs!in!the!model,!we!have!assumed!that!the!addition!of!one!new!
child! in! the! schools! increases! the! District’s! costs! by! an! average! cost! to! educate! the!
remainder! of! the! students! currently! within! the! District.! (This! approach! is! consistent!
with!our! treatment!of!new!city!and!county!residents!on!city!and!county!budgets.)!For!
small!changes!in!student!enrollment,!this!approach!likely!overIstates!the!cost!impact!to!
the!District:!a!District!with!5,500!students! is!very! likely! to!spend! the!same!amount! in!
the!aggregate!to!educate!those!children!as!it!would!if!its!enrollment!were!5,501!instead.!
!
It!is!important!to!note!that,!under!the!state!constitution,!the!obligation!of!funding!public!
schools! is! fundamentally! the! State’s! obligation.! The!majority! of! the! local! property! tax!
levies! imposed! by! the! District! automatically! adjust! to! provide! a! level! of! funding!
prescribed! by! school! funding! laws! or! regulations.! Put! another! way,! as! assessed!
valuations! decline,! property! tax! levy! rates! increase! to! produce! required! revenue;!
similarly,! as! assessed! valuations! increase,! property! tax! levy! levies! rollIdown! to! limit!
revenue!collected.!This!is!how,!for!instance,!school!districts!are!able!to!execute!“no!tax!
increase”! bond! issues—as! assessed! valuations! increase,! existing! debt! service! levies!
produce! higher! property! tax! receipts,! providing! schools! with! additional! financial!
resources!to!pay!principal!and!interest!on!debt!even!though!the!levy!rate!itself!has!not!
changed.!
!
The! one! exception! to! this! general! rule! is! the! levy! the!District!may! impose! for! capital!
purposes.!That!levy!is!capped!under!current!state!law!at!eight!mills.!Because!the!District!
imposes!the! levy!at! the!eightImill! limit,!any!reduction! in!assessed!value! in!the!District!
reduces! tax! dollars! available! to! the! District.! Similarly,! increases! in! assessed! value!
produce!more!dollars!for!the!purposes!permitted!related!to!that!levy.!
!
As! demonstrated! in! the! “Economics”! section! above,! we! expect! most! projects! within!
LPKC! to! produce! positive! net! property! tax/PILOT! revenues! for! the! District! (and! all!
other! taxing! entities)! compared! to! existing,! undeveloped! property,! even! during! the!
term!of!the!tax!abatement!on!such!projects.!
!
USING THE COST-BENEFIT MODELING RESULTS 
The! output! of! the! model! is! presented! as! the! net! present! value! benefit/(cost)! of! the!
project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Iyear!life!of!the!abatement!on!
each!project.!The!net!benefit!(or,!if!negative,!cost)!of!the!incentive!package!is!presented!
in! today’s! dollars.! The! estimated! impact! on! State! revenues! is! presented! in! nominal!



  Revised CBA for ELHC XIV, LLC • 5 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

(future!value)!terms.!We!also!provide!an!estimated!future!value!project!contribution!to!
the!City’s!Public!Infrastructure!Fund!(PIF).!While!the!modeling!shows!a!significant!net!
present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!the$majority$of$the$City’s$net$
benefit$is$reinvested$in$LPKC$through$the$PIF.!
!
In! the! preparation! of! this! costIbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!
information!provided!to!it!by!applicant!and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!
these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!!
!
Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!
governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!
providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!
agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!
about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!
!
Thank!you!in!advance!for!your!thoughtful!consideration!of!the!analysis!attached.!Please!
let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!
!
Respectfully!submitted,!
COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!
!
!
Jeff!White!
Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 9/5/16

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 9/5/16 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC XIV, LLC
Firm Address: 5015 NW Canal St., Suite 200

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School ($) ($) ($)

2 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
3 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
4 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
5 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
6 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
7 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
8 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
9 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438

10 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438
11 100 678,086 100 0 0 0 37,147 21,635 76,438

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 591,055 235,559 355,496 331,155 139,247 153,500 -14,253 -13,277 505,787 433,070 72,717 67,738
3 592,024 363,718 228,306 205,264 139,053 178,817 -39,764 -35,750 531,683 461,058 70,625 63,497
4 592,166 413,718 178,448 154,848 139,251 178,817 -39,566 -34,333 531,683 461,058 70,625 61,284
5 592,315 413,718 178,597 149,578 139,459 178,817 -39,358 -32,963 531,683 461,058 70,625 59,149
6 592,472 463,718 128,754 104,076 139,677 178,817 -39,139 -31,638 531,683 461,058 70,625 57,088
7 592,637 463,718 128,919 100,578 139,907 178,817 -38,910 -30,356 531,683 461,058 70,625 55,099
8 592,810 463,718 129,092 97,204 140,147 178,817 -38,670 -29,118 531,683 461,058 70,625 53,179
9 592,991 463,718 129,273 93,949 140,400 178,817 -38,417 -27,919 531,683 461,058 70,625 51,326

10 593,182 463,718 129,464 90,810 140,665 178,817 -38,151 -26,761 531,683 461,058 70,625 49,538
11 593,382 463,718 129,664 87,781 140,944 178,817 -37,873 -25,640 531,683 461,058 70,625 47,812

5,925,033 4,209,019 1,716,013 1,415,243 1,398,751 1,762,851 -364,100 -287,754 5,290,931 4,582,591 708,340 565,712

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 1,000

Number of new residents:
   City 22
   County 25
   School District 25

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 2,842,240$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (83,106)$                         

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

200,000
200,000

School District Summary

0
100,000
150,000
150,000

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000

City Summary

City



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Ordinance No. 1034 Approving The Description And Survey Of Lands Necessary 
For Acquisition Of Easements Needed For Expansion Of The City’s Sanitary Sewer Collection System And 

Associated Improvements 

 

Department:  Utilities 

 

Background/Description of Item: The City of Edgerton is constructing a new sanitary sewer pump 
station and force main to connect the residential area of Edgerton to Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment 
Facility. This project will also decommission the existing Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Plant. City 
Council approved the contract with Burns & McDonnell/CAS Constructors, including the GMP, earlier in 
2016. Additionally, the City has acquired easements necessary from Johnson County Parks and Recreation 
District (JCPRD). The only remaining property owner along the force main route is owned by Mid States 
Materials, which operates the Edgerton Quarry. 
 
Easements needed for the project were provided to Mid States Materials in June. Staff has met with 
representatives from Mid States Materials and continues to negotiate in good faith to acquire the necessary 
easements. 
 
In an effort to meet the tight project schedule, staff requests that City Council approve this ordinance to 
complete the next step for remaining easements yet to be acquired for the project. Passing the ordinance 
does not prohibit the City from continuing to negotiate and/or acquire the easements. Staff will continue 
to negotiate easements and hopes to secure easements without the need to finish the condemnation 
process.  
 
Draft Ordinance No. 1034 was prepared by City Attorney.  
 

Enclosure: Draft Ordinance No. 1034 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s): K.S.A. 26-201 

 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance No. 1034 Approving The Description And Survey Of Lands 
Necessary For Acquisition Of Easements Needed For Expansion Of The City’s Sanitary Sewer Collection 

System And Associated Improvements 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator  
Date: September 6, 2016 



ORDINANCE NO. 1034 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE DESCRIPTION AND SURVEY OF LANDS 
NECESSARY FOR ACQUISITION OF EASEMENTS NEEDED FOR EXPANSION OF THE 
CITY’S SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM AND ASSOCIATED 
IMPROVEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, K.S.A. 26-201 requires that, prior to commencing condemnation 
proceedings, the Governing Body, by passage of an ordinance, authorize and provide for the 
acquisition of land or interest needed by the City, set forth the land or interest to be 
condemned, state for what purpose the condemned land or interest in land is to be used, 
and, if applicable, designate, as a benefit district, property specifically benefited by the 
proposed improvement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS: 
 

Section 1.  That the description and survey of a permanent sanitary sewer 
easement and temporary construction easement (necessary for the City to construct a new 
sanitary sewer pump station and connect it to the Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment 
Facility located at the southwest corner of Interstate 35 and Homestead)  --  adjoining and 
parallel to the eastern side of Sunflower Road just outside of the east corporate boundaries 
of the City of Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas -- as prepared and approved by the City 
Engineer, and filed with the City Clerk pursuant to Resolution No. 08-25-16D (adopted by the 
Governing Body of the City of Edgerton, Kansas on August 25, 2016), are hereby approved. 

 
Section 2.  That the action of the Governing Body of the City of Edgerton, Kansas 

in acquiring the easements necessary for the City to construct a new sanitary sewer pump 
station and connect it to the Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment Facility located at the 
southwest corner of Interstate 35 and Homestead has been declared necessary by the 
Governing Body. 
 

Section 3.  That the acquisition of a temporary and permanent easement, as 
described herein and in the attached Exhibit A, is all in accordance with and under the 
provisions of Chapter 26 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated. 
 

Section 4.  That there be and there is hereby declared to be public necessity to 
acquire, by Eminent Domain Proceedings for the purpose of the City constructing a new 
sanitary sewer pump station and connecting it to the Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment 
Facility located at the southwest corner of Interstate 35 and Homestead – adjoining and 
parallel to the eastern side of Sunflower Road just outside of the east corporate boundaries 
of the City of Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas  --  the easements referenced in Section 1 
of this Ordinance, and legally described in the attached Exhibit A. 
 

Section 5.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
passage and publication as provided by law. 



 
PASSED by the Governing Body of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, and approved by 

the Mayor on the 8th day of September, 2016. 
 
 

________________________________ 
Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 
(Seal)  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney 










	Agenda 09-08-2016
	Minutes 08-25-2016
	Ordinance No. 1031 2016 UPOC
	Ordinance No. 1032 2016 STO
	Ordinance No. 1033 Series 2016-B Bond Ordinance
	Resolution No. 09-08-16A Series 2016-B Bond Resolution
	Resolution No. 09-08-16B Assignment for ELHC XIV
	Ordinance No. 1034 Quarry

